EXTRACTS FROM MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL

* * *

A Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina was duly held in the Meeting Chamber at the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center in Charlotte, North Carolina, the regular place of meeting, at 6:30 p.m. on April 11, 2022:

Members Present: Eiselt, Ajmera, Winston, Phipps, Egleston, Graham, Watlington, Johnson,

Newton, Driggs

Members Absent: Bokhari

* * * * * *

Councilmember Egleston/Graham introduced the following resolution (the "*Resolution*"), a summary of which had been provided to each Councilmember, copy of which was available with the City Clerk and which was read by title:

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS OF THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE AND VARIOUS AGREEMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH TRANSACTIONS

WHEREAS, the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, a municipal corporation in the State of North Carolina (the "City"), owns and operates within the City a public airport known as the Charlotte Douglas International Airport (together with such additions thereto as may be made from time to time, the "Airport");

WHEREAS, the City is empowered, under the constitution and laws of the State of North Carolina (the "State"), particularly The State and Local Government Revenue Bond Act (Article 5 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina), as the same may be amended from time to time (the "Act"), to issue its revenue bonds for the purpose of financing airport facilities and refunding prior bonds issued for such purposes;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the "City Council") on April 24, 2017 adopted a bond order authorizing and securing airport revenue bonds of the City, which restated, supplemented and amended the bond order originally adopted by the City Council on November 18, 1985, as amended and supplemented by Supplemental Bond Order, Number 1 adopted by the City Council on March 22, 2021, and which the City Council may further restate, supplement and amend from time to time (the "Order");

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and hereby further determines that it is in the City's best interest to finance and refinance the costs of Airport facilities and improvements in accordance with the Airport's capital improvement plan (the "*Projects*");

WHEREAS, the City has proceeded with financing some of the Projects on an interim basis from the proceeds of bond anticipation notes, including the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2021 (the "2021 BAN");

- **WHEREAS**, the City Council has determined that it is desirable to refinance the 2021 BAN in order to further finance a portion of the Projects and achieve a long-term fixed cost of funds for a portion of the Projects financed and refinanced with the 2021 BAN;
- WHEREAS, in order to obtain funds to refinance a portion of the 2021 BAN and further finance Projects, the City Council has determined to approve the transactions described herein whereby the City will authorize and approve the issuance of a series of its airport revenue bonds to be known as "City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (Non-AMT)" (the "2022A Bonds") and a series of its airport revenue bonds to be known as "City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B (AMT)" (the "2022B Bonds" and together with the 2022A Bonds, the "2022 Bonds");
- **WHEREAS**, the 2022 Bonds will be sold pursuant to a Bond Purchase Agreement among the Local Government Commission of North Carolina (the "LGC"), the City and BofA Securities, Inc., on its own behalf and on behalf of PNC Capital Markets LLC and Ramirez & Co., Inc., as underwriters (the "Underwriters") for the 2022 Bonds authorized hereunder (the "Bond Purchase Agreement");
- **WHEREAS**, copies of the forms of the following documents relating to the transactions described above have been filed with the City Clerk and are available to the City Council:
 - 1. the Bond Purchase Agreement; and
 - 2. a preliminary official statement with respect to the 2022 Bonds deemed final as of its date, except for the omission of no more than the information permitted to be omitted by Rule 15c2-12 ("Rule 15c2-12") under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Preliminary Official Statement");
- WHEREAS, in order to satisfy the requirements of Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the treasury regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, the "Code"), the City Council held a public hearing on April 11, 2022, after notice being duly given (the "Public Hearing Notice") regarding the issuance of the 2022 Bonds and a bond anticipation note (the "2022 Note") in connection with the financing and refinancing Projects, and now desires to approve the issuance of the 2022 Bonds and the financing and refinancing of the Projects with the proceeds thereof in accordance with the Code; and
 - WHEREAS, the City has applied to LGC for approval of the 2022 Bonds as required by the Act;
- **NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED** by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina that the City Council has determined to adopt, in accordance with Section 208 of the Order, this Resolution authorizing the issuance of the 2022 Bonds under the Order, as follows:
- **Section 1.** For purposes of this Resolution, all capitalized, undefined words have the meanings ascribed to them in Appendix A attached hereto (the "Appendix"). The Appendix is incorporated into this Resolution by reference. This Resolution is a Series Resolution under the Order.
- **Section 2.** The 2022 Bonds are to be issued by the City for the purpose of providing funds, together with other available funds of the City, to (1) refinance a portion of the 2021 BAN, (2) further finance a portion of the Projects, (3) fund any necessary debt service reserves for the 2022 Bonds, (4) pay capitalized interest on the 2022 Bonds and (5) pay the costs of issuing the 2022 Bonds.

- **Section 3.** The City will issue not to exceed \$425,000,000 in total aggregate principal amount of its 2022 Bonds. The City Manager and the Chief Financial Officer, with advice from bond counsel, are authorized to determine the aggregate principal amounts of the 2022A Bonds and the 2022B Bonds, respectively, to be issued so long as the combined amount is not in excess of the amount set forth in the preceding sentence.
- **Section 4.** The City Council requests that the 2022 Bonds be sold at private sale without advertisement to the Underwriters at such price as the LGC determines to be in the best interest of the City and as set forth in the City's application, but at a true interest cost not exceeding 6.00%. The City Council approves the award of the 2022 Bonds by the LGC and directs the authentication and delivery of the 2022 Bonds upon payment of the purchase price plus the accrued interest thereon.
- **Section 5.** The 2022 Bonds are to be dated as of their date of issuance and pay interest and have such other terms as set forth in the Appendix.
- **Section 6.** The 2022 Bonds are payable in annual installments on July 1 in each year, as set forth in the Chief Financial Officer's certificate under Section 2.03 of the Appendix.
- **Section 7.** The City covenants to take such action as may be required in the opinion of Bond Counsel to cause the 2022 Bonds and all actions of the City with respect to the proceeds thereof to comply with the Code. The Authorized Officers (as defined below) are hereby authorized to execute a certificate or agreement in order to comply with Section 148 of the Code.
- The form and content of the Bond Purchase Agreement is in all respects Section 8. authorized, approved and confirmed. The Mayor, the City Manager and the Chief Financial Officer, including anyone serving as such in an interim capacity, and their respective designees (the "Authorized Signatories"), are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase Agreement for and on behalf of the City, including necessary counterparts, in substantially the form and content presented to the City Council, but with such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein as they deem necessary, desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of the City Council's approval of any and all such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein. From and after the execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Mayor, the City Manager, the Chief Financial Officer, the Aviation Director and the City Clerk, including anyone serving as such in an interim capacity, and their respective designees (the "Authorized Officers"), are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Bond Purchase Agreement as executed. The Bond Purchase Agreement may be split and executed and delivered as more than one document if the Authorized Officers so determine. Such execution by the Authorized Signatories constitutes conclusive evidence of the City Council's approval thereof.
- Section 9. The form and content of the Preliminary Official Statement are in all respects authorized, approved and confirmed. The Authorized Signatories are authorized to deliver a "final official statement" within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 with respect to the 2022 Bonds on behalf of the City (the "Official Statement"). The use of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement by the Underwriters in connection with the sale of the 2022 Bonds is hereby in all respects ratified, authorized, approved and confirmed.
- **Section 10.** No stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in the 2022 Bonds, this Resolution, the Bond Purchase Agreement or any other instrument related to the issuance of the 2022 Bonds is deemed to be a stipulation, obligation or agreement of any officer, agent or employee

of the City in his or her individual capacity, and no such officer, agent or employee is personally liable on the 2022 Bonds or subject to personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.

- Section 11. The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do any and all other acts and to execute any and all other documents, which they, in their discretion, deem necessary and appropriate in order to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Resolution and the other documents presented to this meeting and to execute and administer such transactions; except that none of the above is authorized or empowered to do anything or execute any document which is in contravention, in any way, of (a) the specific provisions of this Resolution, (b) any agreement to which the City is bound or (c) any applicable law, statute, ordinance, rule or regulation of the United States of America or the State. Any provision in this Resolution that authorizes more than one officer of the City to take certain actions shall be read to permit such officers to take the authorized actions either individually or collectively.
- **Section 12.** Pursuant to and in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 147(f) of the Code, the City Council hereby approves (a) the issuance of the 2022 Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the amount listed in the Public Hearing Notice and (b) the financing and refinancing of the Projects.
- Section 13. From the adoption of this Resolution until the date of the first issuance of 2022 Bonds hereunder, the Authorized Signatories are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to make any changes, modifications, additions or deletions to the Appendix as to them seem necessary, desirable or appropriate to implement the intent of this Resolution. Such changes, modifications, additions or deletions to the Appendix shall be set forth in a certificate executed by an Authorized Signatory on the date of issuance of the 2022 Bonds hereunder. Such execution by an Authorized Signatory constitutes conclusive evidence of the City Council's approval thereof.
- **Section 14.** All acts and doings of the City and its officials authorized by this Resolution that are in conformity with the purposes and intents of this Resolution and in the furtherance of the issuance of the 2022 Bonds and the execution, delivery and performance of the Bond Purchase Agreement are in all respects ratified, approved and confirmed.
- **Section 15.** If any one or more of the agreements or provisions herein contained is held contrary to any express provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or for any reason whatsoever is held invalid, then such covenants, agreements or provisions are null and void and separable from the remaining agreements and provisions and will in no way affect the validity of any of the other agreements and provisions hereof or of the 2022 Bonds authorized hereunder.
- Section 16. This Resolution is adopted with the intent that the laws of the State govern its construction.
- **Section 17**. All resolutions or parts thereof of the City Council in conflict with the provisions herein contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed.
 - **Section 18.** This Resolution is effective on its adoption.

April 11, 2022 Resolution Book 52, Page 587

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA)	
CITY OF CHARLOTTE) ss:	
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHARLOTTE AND VARIOUS TRANSACTIONS" adopted by the C	ne foregoing is a IE ISSUANCE OF AGREEMENTS City Council of the reference havin	of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, a true and exact copy of a resolution entitled "A F AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS OF THE CITY OF AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH e City of Charlotte, North Carolina, at a meeting held g been made in Minute Book 155, and recorded in
WITNESS my hand and the day of April , 2022.	he corporate seal	Stephanie C. Kelly City Clerk City of Charlotte, North Carolina

APPENDIX A

TO

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF:

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022A (NON-AMT)

and

AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022B (AMT)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
ARTICLE I. Definition	ns	1
Section 1.01.	Meaning of Words and Terms	1
Section 1.02.	Parties Interested Herein	
Section 1.03.	Ratification	5
ARTICLE II. Authoriz	cation, Form, Issuance, Delivery And Registration of 2022 Bonds	5
Section 2.01.	Authorization of Financing and Authorization of 2022 Bonds	
Section 2.02.	Issuance of 2022 Bonds	
Section 2.03.	Delivery of 2022 Bonds	
Section 2.04.	Details of 2022 Bonds; Payment	7
Section 2.05.	Arbitrage and Tax Covenants	
ARTICLE III. Redemp	otion of the 2022 Bonds	9
Section 3.01.	Privilege of Redemption and Redemption Prices	9
Section 3.02.	Optional Redemption of the 2022 Bonds	
Section 3.03.	Extraordinary Optional Redemption of 2022 Bonds	
Section 3.04.	Sinking Fund Redemption	
Section 3.05.	Notice of Redemption	
Section 3.06.	Selection of 2022 Bonds To Be Redeemed	
Section 3.07.	No Partial Redemption After Default	
ARTICLE IV. Revenu	es, Accounts and Funds	11
Section 4.01.	Establishment of Accounts	11
Section 4.02.	Revenues Received by the City	
Section 4.03.	Application of Money in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue	
	Bond Sinking Fund Account	12
Section 4.04.	Application of Money in the Series 2022A Revenue Bond Redemption	
	Account	13
Section 4.05.	Application of Money in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue	
	Bond Sinking Fund Account	14
Section 4.06.	Application of Money in the Series 2022B Revenue Bond Redemption	
	Account	16
Section 4.07.	Application of Money in Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue	
	Bond Reserve Account.	16
Section 4.08.	Application of Money in the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account	
	of the Construction Fund.	18
Section 4.09.	Investment of Money	18
Section 4.10.	Payment of Principal, Interest and Premium and Pledge of Net Revenues	
ARTICLE V. Use of E	Sond Proceeds	19
ARTICLE VI. Supplei	mental Series Resolutions	19
Section 6.01.	Supplemental Series Resolutions	
Section 6.02.	2022 Bonds Affected	
Section 6.03.	Exclusion of 2022 Bonds	
Section 6.04.	Responsibilities of Trustee and City Under this Article	

April 11, 2022 Resolution Book 52, Page 590

aneous Provisions	20
Headings	20
Application to the LGC	20
Authorization for Other Acts	
Acceptance of Duties by Paying Agent	21
Holidays	
Replacement of Registrar or Paying Agent	21
Continuing Disclosure	21
E-Verify	24
OF 2022A BOND	
OF 2022B BOND	
OF REQUISITION	
	Headings Application to the LGC Approval of Amount of 2022 Bonds and Interest Rate Authorization for Other Acts Acceptance of Duties by Paying Agent Holidays Replacement of Registrar or Paying Agent Continuing Disclosure E-Verify OF 2022A BOND OF 2022B BOND

ARTICLE I.

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. *Meaning of Words and Terms*.

- (a) *Definitions*. All words and phrases defined in Article I of the Order are incorporated herein by reference. In addition, the following terms, except where the context indicates otherwise, have the respective meanings set forth below:
- "Appendix A" means this Appendix A which is attached to, and incorporated in, the Series Resolution.
 - "Authorized Denomination" means \$5,000 and any integral multiple thereof.
- "Bond Counsel" means an attorney or firm of attorneys of recognized national standing in the field of law relating to municipal bonds, selected by the City.
- "Bond Purchase Agreement" means the Bond Purchase Agreement among the LGC, the City and the Purchasers, providing for the initial purchase of the 2022 Bonds.
- "Bond Registrar" means U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, or any successor or successors thereto appointed pursuant to the Order, the Series Resolution or this Appendix A.
 - "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as from time to time amended.
- "Common Reserve Bonds" means, collectively, the 2014 Bonds, the 2017 Bonds, the 2019 Bonds, the 2021 Bonds, the 2022 Bonds and any subsequent series of Bonds issued under a series resolution that (1) designates such Series of Bonds as being secured by the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account created under the 2014 Series Resolution, (2) requires annual payments of principal on July 1 of each year set forth in such series resolution and (3) requires semiannual payments of interest on January 1 and July 1 of each year, beginning on the date set forth in such series resolution.
- "Common Reserve Series Resolution" means a series resolution executed and delivered in accordance with Section 1105 of the Order under which one or more Series of Common Reserve Bonds are issued.
- "Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01 of the 2014 Series Resolution.
 - "Direct Participant" means a participant in the book-entry system maintained by DTC.
 - "DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York.
- "Finance Director" has the meaning set forth in the Bond Order which, as of the date of this Series Resolution is the Chief Financial Officer of the City.
- "Fitch Ratings" means Fitch, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and assigns and, if such corporation is dissolved or liquidated or otherwise ceases to perform securities rating services, such other nationally recognized securities rating

agency (other than Moody's) as may be designated in writing by the City and approved in writing by the LGC.

"Interest Payment Date" means, with respect to the 2022 Bonds, each January 1 and July 1 thereafter, beginning on January 1, 2023.

"Mail" means first-class United States mail, postage prepaid.

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and their assigns, or, if such corporation is dissolved or liquidated or otherwise ceases to perform securities rating services, such other nationally recognized securities rating agency (other than Fitch Ratings) as may be designated in writing by the City and approved in writing by the LGC.

"Order" means the bond order adopted by the City Council on April 24, 2017 authorizing and securing airport revenue bonds of the City, which restated, supplemented and amended the bond order originally adopted by the City Council on November 18, 1985, as amended and supplemented by Supplemental Bond Order, Number 1 adopted by the City Council on March 22, 2021, and which the City Council may further restate, supplement and amend from time to time (the "Order").

"Paying Agent" means the Bond Registrar or any successor or successors thereto appointed pursuant to the Order or this Appendix A.

"Projects" has the meaning set forth in the Series Resolution.

"Purchasers" collectively, BofA Securities, Inc., PNC Capital Markets LLC, and Ramirez & Co., Inc., and any other financial institution or underwriter that may be named in accordance with the Bond Purchase Agreement.

"Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute" means (1) an irrevocable letter of credit, naming the Trustee as beneficiary, issued by any domestic or foreign bank, or any branch or agency thereof, whose long-term debt obligations are rated by at least one national rating agency in the "A" rating category or higher, or the equivalent, (2) a surety bond issued by a financial institution whose long-term rating is in the "A" rating category or higher, or equivalent, by at least one national rating agency or (3) a policy of reserve fund insurance issued by an insurance company whose claims-paying ability is rated by at least one national rating agency in the "A" rating category or higher, or the equivalent. In each case, ratings set forth above shall be determined at the time of issuance of such Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute and without regard to ratings subcategories.

"Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute Provider" means the provider of a Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute.

"Regular Record Date" means, with respect to each Interest Payment Date, the 15th day of the calendar month immediately preceding the Interest Payment Date whether or not a Business Day.

"Reserve Requirement" means, with respect to the Common Reserve Bonds, (1) the lesser of (a) 10% of the issuance price of the Common Reserve Bonds, (b) the maximum amount required to pay principal and interest on the Common Reserve Bonds for any current or succeeding Fiscal Year and (c) 125% of the average annual principal and interest requirements on the Common Reserve Bonds or (2) such lesser amount as set forth in a certificate of Bond Counsel delivered to the City and the Trustee.

- "Series Resolution" means, the Series Resolution adopted by the City Council on April 11, 2022 relating to the 2022 Bonds, the appendices attached thereto, and any amendments or supplements thereto.
- "Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account" means the account created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Capitalized Interest Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022A Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Capitalized Interest Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Series 2022B Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.
- "Sinking Fund Requirement" means the principal amount of the 2022 Bonds to be retired by mandatory redemption pursuant to Section 3.04 of this Appendix A as specified in the certificate delivered under Section 2.03 of this Appendix A. If during any 12-month period ended June 30 the total principal amount of the 2022 Bonds retired by purchase or redemption under the provisions of this Appendix A is greater than the amount of the corresponding Sinking Fund Requirement for such 2022 Bonds, the next succeeding Sinking Fund Requirements for such 2022 Bonds will be reduced in such amount aggregating the amount of such excess.
 - "2014 Bonds" means, collectively, the 2014A Bonds and the 2014B Bonds.

- "2014A Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A (Non-AMT).
- "2014B Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B (AMT).
 - "2017 Bonds" means, collectively, the 2017A Bonds, the 2017B Bonds and the 2017C Bonds.
- "2017A Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Non-AMT).
- "2017B Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (AMT).
- "2017C Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017C (Non-AMT).
 - "2019 Bonds" means, collectively, the 2019A Bonds and the 2019B Bonds.
- "2019A Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (Non-AMT).
- "2019B Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (AMT).
 - "2021 BAN" means the City's Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2021.
 - "2021 Bonds" means, collectively, the 2021A Bonds and the 2021B Bonds.
- "2021A Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A (Non-AMT).
- "2021B Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2021B (AMT).
 - "2022 Bonds" means, collectively, the 2022A Bonds and the 2022B Bonds.
- "2022A Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (Non-AMT) issued pursuant to the Order, the Series Resolution and this Appendix A.
- "2022B Bonds" means the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B (AMT), issued pursuant to the Order, the Series Resolution and this Appendix A.
- (b) *Construction*. This Appendix A, except where the context by clear implication herein otherwise requires, is subject to and to be construed in the same manner as provided by Section 102 of the Order.
- Section 1.02. **Parties Interested Herein.** Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Appendix A, nothing herein expressed or implied is intended or to be construed to confer on or to give to any Person, other than the City, the City Council, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee, the Purchasers and the owners from time to time of the 2022 Bonds, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason hereof or any covenant, condition or stipulation hereof. All the covenants, stipulations, promises

and agreements herein contained by and on behalf of the City are for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City, the City Council, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee, the Purchasers and the owners of the 2022 Bonds, except as herein otherwise provided.

Section 1.03. *Ratification.* All action heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the provisions of this Appendix A) by the City directed toward the purposes described in Section 2 of the Series Resolution, the sale and delivery of the 2022 Bonds for those purposes and the acceptance and execution of the Bond Purchase Agreement submitted by the Purchasers to the City, hereby is ratified, approved and confirmed.

[End of Article I]

ARTICLE II.

AUTHORIZATION, FORM, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY AND REGISTRATION OF 2022 BONDS

Section 2.01. Authorization of Financing and Authorization of 2022 Bonds. The financing and refinancing of the Projects and the other uses of proceeds set forth in the Series Resolution are hereby authorized, approved and confirmed. The 2022 Bonds are hereby authorized and will be issued, under and pursuant to the constitution and the laws of the State, including the Act, the Order, the Series Resolution and this Appendix A in the amounts and subject to the conditions herein provided for the purposes described in Section 2 of the Series Resolution. No 2022 Bonds may be issued under the provisions of this Appendix A and the Order except in accordance with this Article. The total aggregate principal amount of 2022 Bonds that may be issued is hereby expressly limited to \$425,000,000 except as provided in Sections 204 and 210 of the Order. The Finance Director will determine in her certificate delivered under Section 2.03 of this Appendix A the aggregate principal amount of the 2022A Bonds and the 2022B Bonds, respectively, to be issued so long as the combined amount is not in excess of the amount set forth in the preceding sentence.

Section 2.02. Issuance of 2022 Bonds.

- (a) The 2022A Bonds will be designated "City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (Non-AMT)." The 2022A Bonds will be issuable as fully registered bonds in any Authorized Denomination. The 2022A Bonds will be numbered from RA-1 upwards. The 2022A Bonds will be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A, with such appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are permitted or required by this Appendix A.
- (b) The 2022B Bonds will be designated "City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B (AMT)." The 2022B Bonds will be issuable as fully registered bonds in any Authorized Denomination. The 2022B Bonds will be numbered from RB-1 upwards. The 2022B Bonds will be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit B, with such appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are permitted or required by this Appendix A.
- Section 2.03. *Delivery of 2022 Bonds*. The 2022 Bonds must be in Authorized Denominations and executed substantially in the form and in the manner set forth in the Exhibits to this Appendix A and will be deposited with the Bond Registrar for authentication, but before the 2022 Bonds may be authenticated and delivered by the Bond Registrar to the State Treasurer for redelivery to the Purchasers, there must be filed with the Trustee the following:
 - 1. a copy, certified by the City Clerk, of the Order;

- 2. a copy, certified by the City Clerk, of the Series Resolution adopted by the City Council for the 2022 Bonds;
- 3. a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Deputy Secretary of the Local Government Commission, of the resolution of the Local Government Commission approving the issuance of and awarding the 2022 Bonds;
- 4. evidence of compliance with the provisions of Section 716 of the Bond Order;
- 5. a certificate or certificates of the City Manager, the Finance Director or their respective designee, collectively setting forth the following:
 - (A) the aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Bonds to be issued, not in excess of the maximum amount previously established in Section 2.01;
 - (B) the interest rates for the 2022 Bonds;
 - (C) the amount of the Reserve Requirement which is required to be deposited into the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account:
 - (D) the disposition of the proceeds of the 2022 Bonds and any other funds on hand with the Trustee for the purposes authorized under the Series Resolution;
 - (E) the designation of the principal amount of each maturity of each of the 2022 Bonds and the Sinking Fund Requirements, if any, for the 2022 Bonds; and
 - (F) the optional redemption provisions for the 2022 Bonds, including the designation of the dates and the premium, under Section 3.02;
- 6. a certificate setting forth any changes, modifications, additions or deletions to this Appendix A permitted by the Series Resolution; provided, however, no certificate is required if there are no such changes; and
- 7. such other documents as are required to be delivered to the Trustee under the Bond Purchase Agreement in connection with the issuance of the 2022 Bonds.

When the documents mentioned in this Section have been filed with the Trustee and when the 2022 Bonds have been executed and authenticated as required by this Series Resolution, the Trustee shall deliver the 2022 Bonds at the times as prescribed in the Bond Purchase Agreement to the State Treasurer for redelivery to or on the order of the Purchasers, but only on payment to the Trustee of the purchase price of the 2022 Bonds. The Trustee is entitled to rely on the resolutions and certificates mentioned in this Section as to all matters stated therein.

Section 2.04. Details of 2022 Bonds; Payment.

- (a) The 2022 Bonds will mature on July 1 of the years and in the amounts and will bear interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) as set forth in the Finance Director's certificate referred to in Section 2.03 above.
- (b) Both the principal of and the interest on the 2022 Bonds are payable in any lawful coin or currency of the United States of America which on the respective dates of payment thereof is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. Each 2022 Bond shall bear interest from its date until its principal sum has been paid, but if such 2022 Bond has matured or has been called for redemption and the redemption date has occurred and funds are available for the payment thereof in full in accordance with the terms of the Order, such 2022 Bond shall then cease to bear interest as of the maturity date or Redemption Date. The 2022 Bonds will be dated as of their date of issuance, except that 2022 Bonds issued in exchange for or on the registration of transfer of 2022 Bonds will be dated as of the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication thereof, unless (i) the date of such authentication precedes the first Interest Payment Date, in which case they will be dated their date of issuance, or (ii) the date of such authentication is an Interest Payment Date to which interest on the 2022 Bonds has been paid in full or duly provided for in accordance with the terms of this Appendix A, in which case they will be dated as of such Interest Payment Date; except that if, as shown by the records of the Bond Registrar, interest on the 2022 Bonds is in default, 2022 Bonds executed and delivered in exchange for or on registration of transfer of 2022 Bonds will be dated as of the date to which interest on the 2022 Bonds, respectively, has been paid in full. If no interest has been paid on the 2022 Bonds, 2022 Bonds executed and delivered in exchange for or on the registration of transfer of 2022 Bonds will be dated as of their date of issuance.
- (c) The 2022 Bonds will be initially delivered by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of definitive 2022 Bonds made to the public. One definitive 2022 Bond for each maturity (and interest rate if there are split coupons) of each series is to be delivered to The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), and immobilized in its custody. A book-entry system will be employed, evidencing ownership of the 2022 Bonds in denominations of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, with transfers of beneficial ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants (the "DTC Participants") pursuant to rules and procedures established by DTC.

Each DTC Participant will be credited in the records of DTC with the amount of such DTC Participant's interest in the 2022 Bonds. Beneficial ownership interests in the 2022 Bonds may be purchased by or through DTC Participants. The holders of these beneficial ownership interests are hereinafter referred to as the "Beneficial Owners." The Beneficial Owners will not receive definitive 2022 Bonds representing their beneficial ownership interests. The ownership interests of each Beneficial Owner will be recorded through the records of the DTC Participant from which such Beneficial Owner purchased its 2022 Bonds. Transfers of ownership interests in the 2022 Bonds will be accomplished by book entries made by DTC and, in turn, by DTC Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. So long as Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, is the Registered Owner of the 2022 Bonds, the Trustee shall treat Cede & Co. as the only owner of the 2022 Bonds for all purposes under the Order and this Appendix A, including receipt of all principal and premium, if any, and interest on the 2022 Bonds, receipt of notices, voting and requesting or directing the Trustee to take or not to take, or consenting to, certain actions under the Order or this Appendix A.

Payments of principal, interest and premium, if any, with respect to the 2022 Bonds, so long as DTC is the only Owner of the 2022 Bonds, will be paid by the Trustee directly to DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., as provided in the Blanket Letter of Representation of the City on file with DTC (the "Letter of Representation"). DTC will remit such payments to DTC Participants, and such payments thereafter will be paid by DTC Participants to the Beneficial Owners. The Trustee and the City are not and will not be responsible or liable for payment by DTC or DTC Participants, for sending transaction statements or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing records maintained by DTC or DTC Participants.

If (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the 2022 Bonds or (b) the Trustee and the City determine to discontinue the book entry system in accordance with DTC's rules and the City fails to identify another qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the City will deliver fully registered definitive 2022 Bonds in accordance with DTC's rules and procedures.

The City and the Trustee have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (A) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any DTC Participant; (B) the payment by DTC or any DTC Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in respect of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the 2022 Bonds; (C) the delivery or timeliness of delivery by DTC or any DTC Participant of any notice due to any beneficial owner which is required or permitted under the terms of the Order or this Appendix A to be given to Owners; (D) the selection of Beneficial Owners to receive payments in the event of any partial redemption of the 2022 Bonds; or (E) any consent given or other action taken by DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., as Owner.

- (d) The 2022 Bonds are payable at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar on presentation and surrender. Interest on the 2022 Bonds will be paid by the Bond Registrar by check or draft mailed on the Interest Payment Date to each Owner as its name and address appear on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date. At the written request of any Owner of at least \$1,000,000 in Outstanding aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Bonds, and so long as the 2022 Bonds are in book-entry, principal and interest may be payable by wire transfer at the address specified in writing by the Owner to the Bond Registrar by the Record Date. CUSIP number identification with appropriate dollar amounts for each CUSIP number shall accompany all payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any 2022 Bonds, whether by check or by wire transfer.
- (e) U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, Charlotte, North Carolina, is hereby appointed as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent with respect to the 2022 Bonds.

Section 2.05. Arbitrage and Tax Covenants. The City covenants that it will not take or permit, or omit to take or cause to be taken, any action that would adversely affect the exclusion from federal income taxation of the interest on the 2022A Bonds and the 2022B Bonds and, if it should take or permit, or omit to take or cause to be taken, any such action, the City will take or cause to be taken all lawful actions within its power necessary to rescind or correct such actions or omissions promptly on having knowledge thereof. The City acknowledges that the continued exclusion of interest on the 2022A Bonds and the 2022B Bonds or from an Owner's gross income for federal income tax purposes depends, in part, on compliance with the arbitrage limitations imposed by Section 148 of the Code. The City covenants that it will comply with all the requirements of Section 148 of the Code, including the rebate requirements, and that it will not permit at any time any of the proceeds of the 2022A Bonds and the 2022B Bonds or other funds under its control be used, directly or indirectly, to acquire any asset or obligation, the

acquisition of which would cause the 2022A Bonds and the 2022B Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" for purposes of Section 148 of the Code.

[End of Article II]

ARTICLE III.

REDEMPTION OF THE 2022 BONDS

Section 3.01. *Privilege of Redemption and Redemption Prices*. The 2022 Bonds are redeemable, on notice as provided below, at the times, at the redemption prices and on the terms contained in this Article III and in Article III of the Order.

Section 3.02. *Optional Redemption of the 2022 Bonds*. The optional redemption provisions for the 2022 Bonds will be set forth in the Finance Director's certificate referred to in Section 2.03 above; provided, however, the 2022 Bonds will not be subject to optional redemption later than any date beginning on July 1, 2032 and at a premium (calculated on the par amount on the 2022 Bonds called for redemption) not to exceed 2.00%.

Section 3.03. *Extraordinary Optional Redemption of 2022 Bonds*. The 2022 Bonds will be subject to optional redemption by the City, in whole or in part on any date at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, on instructions from the City, from the Net Proceeds of insurance or Eminent Domain which are deposited in the applicable subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account.

Section 3.04. *Sinking Fund Redemption.* The 2022 Bonds are required to be redeemed to the extent of any Sinking Fund Requirement on each July 1 on which there is a Sinking Fund Requirement from money required to be deposited in the applicable subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the 2022 Bonds, respectively, being redeemed, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Section 3.05. *Notice of Redemption.* Notice of redemption with respect to a series of 2022 Bonds will be given by the Trustee not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the Redemption Date (1) to the LGC by Mail, electronic or facsimile transmission, (2)(a) to DTC or its nominee by registered or certified mail at the address provided to the Trustee by DTC or as otherwise permitted by DTC's rules and procedures or (b) if DTC or its nominee is no longer the Owner of such 2022 Bonds, by Mail to the then-registered Owners of such 2022 Bonds to be redeemed at the last address shown on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar and (3) to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "*MSRB*") in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB.

Such notice must (1) specify the 2022 Bonds of a series to be redeemed, the redemption date, the redemption price and the place or places where amounts due on such redemption must be payable and if less than all of such 2022 Bonds are to be redeemed, the numbers of such 2022 Bonds and the portions of such 2022 Bonds to be redeemed, and (2) state that on the redemption date, such 2022 Bonds to be redeemed will cease to bear interest. If at the time of mailing of notice of redemption there is not on deposit with the Trustee money sufficient to redeem such 2022 Bonds called for redemption, which money is or will be available for redemption of such 2022 Bonds, such notice will state that it is conditional on the deposit of the redemption money with the Trustee on the redemption date. Any notice, once given, may be withdrawn by notice delivered in the manner set forth above, on receipt by the Trustee of written instructions from the City with respect to such withdrawal.

Failure to provide such notice to any Owner or any defect therein will not affect the validity of any proceedings for such redemption as to any other Owner to whom such notice was properly given. Failure to provide such notice to the LGC or the MSRB as provided above will not affect the validity of any proceedings for such redemption.

If money is on deposit with the Trustee to pay the redemption price of such 2022 Bonds called for redemption including premium, if any, thereon on a redemption date, such 2022 Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption as hereinabove specified will not bear interest after such redemption date and will not be considered to be Outstanding or to have any other rights under the Order other than the right to receive payment. No payment of principal will be made by the Trustee or the Bond Registrar on any 2022 Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption until such 2022 Bonds or portions thereof have been delivered for payment or cancellation or the Bond Registrar has received the items required by Section 210 of the Order with respect to any mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed 2022 Bonds.

Section 3.06. *Selection of 2022 Bonds To Be Redeemed.* Notwithstanding Section 302 of the Order, in the case of any partial redemption of 2022 Bonds, the City will select the series of the 2022 Bonds and the maturity or maturities of the 2022 Bonds within a series to be redeemed and DTC will select the 2022 Bonds within the same maturity of a series pursuant to its rules and procedures or, if the book-entry system with DTC or any other securities depository has been discontinued, the Bond Registrar will select the 2022 Bonds to be redeemed by lot in such manner as the Bond Registrar in its discretion may deem proper.

If a 2022 Bond subject to redemption is in a denomination larger than the minimum Authorized Denomination, a portion of such 2022 Bonds may be redeemed, but only in a principal amount such that the unredeemed portion of such 2022 Bond is equal to an Authorized Denomination. For any 2022 Bond in a denomination of more than the minimum Authorized Denomination, the Trustee shall treat each such 2022 Bond as representing a single 2022 Bond in the minimum Authorized Denomination plus that number of 2022 Bonds that is obtained by dividing the remaining principal amount of such 2022 Bond by the minimum Authorized Denomination.

If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the Authorized Denominations of principal amount represented by any 2022 Bond is to be called for redemption, then, on written notice of intention to redeem such Authorized Denominations of principal amount of such 2022 Bond, the Owner of such 2022 Bond, on surrender of such 2022 Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment of the principal amount of such 2022 Bond, will be entitled to receive new 2022 Bonds of the applicable series in the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of such 2022 Bond.

If the Owner of any 2022 Bond of a denomination greater than the amount being redeemed fails to present such 2022 Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such 2022 Bond will, nevertheless, become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption to the extent of the denomination being redeemed and to that extent only.

Section 3.07. *No Partial Redemption After Default.* Anything in this Appendix A to the contrary notwithstanding, if an Event of Default occurs and is continuing hereunder there will be no redemption of less than all of the 2022 Bonds Outstanding.

[End of Article III]

ARTICLE IV.

REVENUES, ACCOUNTS AND FUNDS

Section 4.01. *Establishment of Accounts*. The following accounts and subaccounts are hereby established:

- (a) Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account of the Construction Fund, and within the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account, (1) the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account and (2) the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account;
 - (b) Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account;
 - (c) Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account;
 - (d) Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account;
 - (e) Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account;
 - (f) Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account;
 - (g) Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account;
 - (h) Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account;
 - (i) Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account.

All accounts and subaccounts are established with and held by the Trustee under the Order.

- Section 4.02. *Revenues Received by the City*. On or before the 25th day of each month beginning after the 2022 Bonds are issued, the City shall, subject to the provisions of the Order, deposit or cause to be deposited from Net Revenues with the Trustee the following amounts and the Trustee shall apply such amounts to the various accounts and subaccounts specified herein:
 - (a) into the applicable subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account created with respect to each Series of Common Reserve Bonds an amount in substantially equal monthly installments necessary, after taking into account money transferred from the PFC Revenue Account or otherwise deposited therein by the City, to have funds on hand each June 25 and December 25, commencing (i) with respect to the 2022 Bonds on December 25, 2022, and (ii) with respect to any other Series of Common Reserve Bonds, on the date set forth in the applicable Common Reserve Series Resolution, to pay the next maturing installment of interest, on each such Series of Common Reserve Bonds then Outstanding; and
 - (b) into the applicable Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account created with respect to each Series of Common Reserve Bonds an amount in substantially equal monthly installments necessary, after taking into account money transferred from the PFC Revenue Account or otherwise deposited therein by the City, to have funds on hand each June 25, commencing (i) with respect to the 2022 Bonds, on June 25, 2023, and (ii) with respect to any other Series of Common Reserve Bonds, on the date set forth in the applicable Common Reserve

Series Resolution, to pay the next maturing installment of principal, on each such Series of Common Reserve Bonds then Outstanding; or

(c) into the applicable Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account created with respect to each Series of Common Reserve Bonds, after taking into account money transferred from the PFC Revenue Account or otherwise deposited therein by the City, 1/12th of the amount required to retire each such Series of Common Reserve Bonds to be called by mandatory redemption pursuant to the applicable Common Reserve Series Resolution on the next ensuing July 1, in accordance with the Sinking Fund Requirement therefor.

In each month following a month in which the Trustee has failed to make any deposit required by this Section, the City shall pay, but only from Net Revenues, and the Trustee shall deposit, in addition to the amounts then due, an amount sufficient to cure the deficiency in the deposits in the prior months unless such deficiency has been cured by a transfer of money to such fund or account from other funds and accounts created hereby, pursuant to the terms of this Appendix A.

- Section 4.03. Application of Money in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account. Money held in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account will be applied during each Fiscal Year to the purchase or retirement of 2022A Bonds then Outstanding as follows:
 - (a) The Trustee shall, at the request of the City, endeavor to purchase and cancel 2022A Bonds or portions thereof subject to redemption by operation of the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account or maturing on the next ensuing July 1 at the most advantageous price readily obtainable with reasonable diligence. The purchase price of each such 2022A Bond shall not exceed par plus accrued interest to the date of purchase. The Trustee shall pay the interest accrued on such 2022A Bonds to the date of settlement therefor from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account and the purchase price from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account, but no such purchase shall be made by the Trustee from money in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account within the period of 45 days immediately preceding any July 1 on which such 2022A Bonds are subject to redemption, except from money other than the money set aside in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account for the redemption of 2022A Bonds. The aggregate purchase price of 2022A Bonds during each Fiscal Year shall not exceed the amount to be deposited in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account on account of the Sinking Fund Requirement for the 2022A Bonds for such Fiscal Year. If in any Fiscal Year the sum of the amount on deposit in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account for the payment of any 2022A Bonds and the principal amount of the 2022A Bonds that were purchased during such Fiscal Year pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph (a) or delivered during such Fiscal Year to the Trustee by the City exceeds the Sinking Fund Requirement for the Outstanding 2022A Bonds for such Fiscal Year, the Trustee shall endeavor to purchase Outstanding 2022A Bonds with such excess money;
 - (b) The Trustee shall call for redemption on July 1 in each Fiscal Year 2022A Bonds in a principal amount equal to the aggregate Sinking Fund Requirement for the 2022A Bonds for such Fiscal Year, less the principal amount of any such 2022A Bonds retired during such Fiscal Year by purchase pursuant to paragraph (a) of this Section or delivered during such Fiscal Year to the Trustee by the City. On each redemption date the Trustee shall withdraw from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account the amount required to pay the Redemption Price of the 2022A Bonds so called for redemption. The amount of interest on the

2022A Bonds so called for redemption shall be paid from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account. If such date is the stated maturity date of any such 2022A Bonds, the Trustee shall not call such 2022A Bonds for redemption but, on such maturity, shall withdraw the amount required for paying the principal of such 2022A Bonds when due and payable.

If at any date there is money in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account and no 2022A Bonds are then Outstanding or if on any payment date money remains therein after the mandatory redemption of 2022A Bonds in accordance with the Sinking Fund Requirement therefor, the Trustee shall withdraw such money and shall apply the same as follows: (a) deposit in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account the amounts, if any, required to be paid thereto in such month pursuant to Section 503(d) of the Order and (b) deliver all remaining amounts to the City.

If the balance in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account on the 25th day of the month next preceding a payment date on which 2022A Bonds are to be redeemed in accordance with the Sinking Fund Requirements therefor is insufficient to satisfy such Sinking Fund Requirement, the Trustee shall transfer to such Subaccount such amounts as may be necessary to remedy the deficiency, drawing on money in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account.

If, in any Fiscal Year, by the application of money in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account the Trustee should purchase or receive from the City and cancel 2022A Bonds in excess of the aggregate Sinking Fund Requirements for such Fiscal Year, the Trustee shall file with the City not later than the 20th day before the next August 1 a statement identifying the 2022A Bonds purchased or delivered during such Fiscal Year and the amount of such excess. The City shall thereafter cause a certificate of the Finance Director to be filed with the Trustee not later than the 10th day before such August 1, setting forth with respect to the amount of such excess the Fiscal Years in which the Sinking Fund Requirements with respect to 2022A Bonds are to be reduced and the amount by which the Sinking Fund Requirements so determined are to be reduced.

On the retirement of any 2022A Bonds by purchase or redemption under the provisions of this Section, the Trustee shall file with the City a statement identifying such 2022A Bonds and setting forth the date of purchase or redemption, the amount of the purchase price or the Redemption Price of such 2022A Bonds, and the amount paid as interest thereon. The expenses incurred in connection with the purchase or redemption of any such 2022A Bonds shall be paid by the City from the Operating Fund or from any other available money.

Section 4.04. *Application of Money in the Series 2022A Revenue Bond Redemption Account.* The Trustee shall apply money in the Series 2022A Revenue Bond Redemption Subaccount to the purchase or redemption of 2022A Bonds as follows:

(a) Subject to the provisions of paragraph (c) of this Section, at the request of the City, the Trustee shall endeavor to purchase and cancel 2022A Bonds or portions thereof, regardless of whether such 2022A Bonds or portions thereof are then subject to redemption, at the most advantageous price readily obtainable with reasonable diligence, provided that the purchase price of each 2022A Bond shall not exceed the Redemption Price that would be payable on the next redemption date to the Owner of such 2022A Bond under the provisions of this Appendix A if such 2022A Bond or such portion thereof should be called for redemption on such date from the money in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account. The Trustee shall pay the interest accrued on such 2022A Bonds or portions thereof to the date of

settlement from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account and the purchase price from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account, but no such purchase shall be made by the Trustee from money in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account within the period of 45 days immediately preceding any Interest Payment Date on which such 2022A Bonds or portions thereof are to be redeemed, except from money other than the money set aside in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account for the redemption of Bonds.

- (b) Subject to the provisions of paragraph (c) of this Section, the Trustee shall call for redemption on a date permitted by this Appendix A such amount of 2022A Bonds or portions thereof as, with the redemption premium, if any, will exhaust the money then held in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account as nearly as may be. The Trustee shall pay the accrued interest on the 2022A Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed to the date of redemption from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account and the Redemption Price of such 2022A Bonds or portions thereof from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account. The Trustee shall withdraw from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account and set aside the respective amounts required to pay the Redemption Price of the 2022A Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption.
- (c) Money in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account shall be applied by the Trustee in each Fiscal Year to the purchase or the redemption of 2022A Bonds then Outstanding in accordance with the Sinking Fund Requirement.

On the retirement of any 2022A Bonds by purchase or redemption pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the Trustee shall file with the City a statement identifying such 2022A Bonds and setting forth the date of purchase or redemption, the amount of the purchase price or the Redemption Price of such 2022A Bonds and the amount paid as interest thereon. The expense incurred by the Trustee in connection with the purchase or redemption of any such 2022A Bonds shall be paid by the City from the Operating Fund or from any other available money.

- Section 4.05. Application of Money in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account. Money held in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account will be applied during each Fiscal Year to the purchase or retirement of 2022B Bonds then Outstanding as follows:
 - The Trustee shall, at the request of the City, endeavor to purchase and cancel (a) 2022B Bonds or portions thereof subject to redemption by operation of the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account or maturing on the next ensuing July 1 at the most advantageous price readily obtainable with reasonable diligence. The purchase price of each such 2022B Bond shall not exceed par plus accrued interest to the date of purchase. The Trustee shall pay the interest accrued on such 2022B Bonds to the date of settlement therefore from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account and the purchase price from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account, but no such purchase shall be made by the Trustee from money in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account within the period of 45 days immediately preceding any July 1 on which such 2022B Bonds are subject to redemption, except from money other than the money set aside in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account for the redemption of 2022B Bonds. The aggregate purchase price of 2022B Bonds during each Fiscal Year shall not exceed the amount to be deposited in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account on account of the Sinking Fund Requirement for the

2022B Bonds for such Fiscal Year. If in any Fiscal Year the sum of the amount on deposit in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account for the payment of any 2022B Bonds and the principal amount of the 2022B Bonds that were purchased during such Fiscal Year pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph (a) or delivered during such Fiscal Year to the Trustee by the City exceeds the Sinking Fund Requirement for the Outstanding 2022B Bonds for such Fiscal Year, the Trustee shall endeavor to purchase Outstanding 2022B Bonds with such excess money;

(b) The Trustee shall call for redemption on July 1 in each Fiscal Year 2022B Bonds in a principal amount equal to the aggregate Sinking Fund Requirement for the 2022B Bonds for such Fiscal Year, less the principal amount of any such 2022B Bonds retired during such Fiscal Year by purchase pursuant to paragraph (a) of this Section or delivered during such Fiscal Year to the Trustee by the City. On each redemption date the Trustee shall withdraw from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account the amount required to pay the Redemption Price of the 2022B Bonds so called for redemption. The amount of interest on the 2022B Bonds so called for redemption shall be paid from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account. If such date is the stated maturity date of any such 2022B Bonds, the Trustee shall not call such 2022B Bonds for redemption but, on such maturity, shall withdraw the amount required for paying the principal of such 2022B Bonds when due and payable.

If at any date there is money in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account and no 2022B Bonds are then Outstanding or if on any payment date money remains therein after the mandatory redemption of 2022B Bonds in accordance with the Sinking Fund Requirement therefor, the Trustee shall withdraw such money and shall apply the same as follows: (a) deposit in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account the amounts, if any, required to be paid thereto in such month pursuant to Section 503(d) of the Order and (b) deliver all remaining amounts to the City.

If the balance in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account on the 25th day of the month next preceding a payment date on which 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed in accordance with the Sinking Fund Requirements therefor is insufficient to satisfy such Sinking Fund Requirement, the Trustee shall transfer to such Subaccount such amounts as may be necessary to remedy the deficiency, drawing on money in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account.

If, in any Fiscal Year, by the application of money in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account the Trustee should purchase or receive from the City and cancel 2022B Bonds in excess of the aggregate Sinking Fund Requirements for such Fiscal Year, the Trustee shall file with the City not later than the 20th day before the next August 1 a statement identifying the 2022B Bonds purchased or delivered during such Fiscal Year and the amount of such excess. The City shall thereafter cause a certificate of the Finance Director to be filed with the Trustee not later than the 10th day before such August 1, setting forth with respect to the amount of such excess the Fiscal Years in which the Sinking Fund Requirements with respect to 2022B Bonds are to be reduced and the amount by which the Sinking Fund Requirements so determined are to be reduced.

On the retirement of any 2022B Bonds by purchase or redemption under the provisions of this Section, the Trustee shall file with the City a statement identifying such 2022B Bonds and setting forth the date of purchase or redemption, the amount of the purchase price or the Redemption Price of such 2022B Bonds, and the amount paid as interest thereon. The expenses incurred in connection with the

purchase or redemption of any such 2022B Bonds shall be paid by the City from the Operating Fund or from any other available money.

Section 4.06. *Application of Money in the Series 2022B Revenue Bond Redemption Account.* The Trustee shall apply money in the Series 2022B Revenue Bond Redemption Subaccount to the purchase or redemption of 2022B Bonds as follows:

- Subject to the provisions of paragraph (c) of this Section, at the request of the City, the Trustee shall endeavor to purchase and cancel 2022B Bonds or portions thereof, regardless of whether such 2022B Bonds or portions thereof are then subject to redemption, at the most advantageous price readily obtainable with reasonable diligence, provided that the purchase price of each 2022B Bond shall not exceed the Redemption Price that would be payable on the next redemption date to the Owner of such 2022B Bond under the provisions of this Appendix A if such 2022B Bond or such portion thereof should be called for redemption on such date from the money in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account. The Trustee shall pay the interest accrued on such 2022B Bonds or portions thereof to the date of settlement from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account and the purchase price from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account, but no such purchase shall be made by the Trustee from money in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account within the period of 45 days immediately preceding any Interest Payment Date on which such 2022B Bonds or portions thereof are to be redeemed, except from money other than the money set aside in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account for the redemption of Bonds.
- (b) Subject to the provisions of paragraph (c) of this Section, the Trustee shall call for redemption on a date permitted by this Appendix A such amount of 2022B Bonds or portions thereof as, with the redemption premium, if any, will exhaust the money then held in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account as nearly as may be. The Trustee shall pay the accrued interest on the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed to the date of redemption from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account and the Redemption Price of such 2022B Bonds or portions thereof from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account. The Trustee shall withdraw from the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account and set aside the respective amounts required to pay the Redemption Price of the 2022B Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption.
- (c) Money in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account shall be applied by the Trustee in each Fiscal Year to the purchase or the redemption of 2022B Bonds then Outstanding in accordance with the Sinking Fund Requirement.

On the retirement of any 2022B Bonds by purchase or redemption pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the Trustee shall file with the City a statement identifying such 2022B Bonds and setting forth the date of purchase or redemption, the amount of the purchase price or the Redemption Price of such 2022B Bonds and the amount paid as interest thereon. The expense incurred by the Trustee in connection with the purchase or redemption of any such 2022B Bonds shall be paid by the City from the Operating Fund or from any other available money.

Section 4.07. Application of Money in Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account.

- (a) This Series Resolution is hereby designated a Common Reserve Series Resolution and the 2022 Bonds are hereby designated as being secured by the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account in accordance with and meeting the standards of the 2014 Series Resolution. There will be deposited in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account an amount as certified by the Finance Director under Section 2.03. The Trustee shall use money deposited in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and the interest on each Series of Common Reserve Bonds whenever and to the extent that (1) money in the applicable Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account created with respect to such Series of Common Reserve Bonds is insufficient to pay the interest on such Series of Common Reserve Bonds or (2) money in the applicable Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account or the applicable Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account created with respect to such Series of Common Reserve Bonds is insufficient to pay the principal of such Series of Common Reserve Bonds. With respect to the 2022 Bonds, the Trustee shall withdraw such money in accordance with the order of priorities set forth in Section 4.02, and with respect to any other Series of Common Reserve Bonds, the Trustee shall withdraw such money in accordance with the order of priorities set forth in the corresponding section of the applicable Common Reserve Series Resolution; provided, however, if there is insufficient money in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account to satisfy all deposits required within each subsection of Section 4.02, then any amounts remaining in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account will be used to satisfy the deposits between each subaccount on a pro rata basis in accordance with the Outstanding aggregate principal amount of each corresponding Series of Common Reserve Bonds. If on any Interest Payment Date the amount on deposit in an account of the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account exceeds the Reserve Requirement therefor, the Trustee shall transfer such excess to (1) the applicable Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account created with respect to each Series of Common Reserve Bonds on a pro rata basis based on the Outstanding aggregate principal amount of each corresponding Series of Common Reserve Bonds or (2) as the City otherwise directs as required by the City's arbitrage and tax regulatory agreement executed and delivered in connection with any Series of Common Reserve Bonds.
- (b) If the City delivers a Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute to the Trustee in satisfaction of the Reserve Requirement, in whole or in part:
 - (i) If and to the extent that money on deposit in the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account, plus all amounts on deposit in and credited to the Subaccounts of the Revenue Bond Fund applicable to each Series of Common Reserve Bonds, in excess of the amount of the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute, is insufficient to pay the amount of principal and interest coming due with respect to any Series of Common Reserve Bonds, then on the later of: (i) one day after receipt by the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute Provider of a demand for payment (a "Demand for Payment"), duly executed by the Trustee certifying that payment due under the Order and any Common Reserve Series Resolution has not been made to the Trustee; or (ii) the payment date of any Series of Common Reserve Bonds as specified in the Demand for Payment presented by the Trustee to the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute Provider, the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute Provider will make a deposit of funds in an account with the Trustee sufficient for the payment to the Trustee of amounts which are then due to the Trustee under any such Common Reserve Series Resolution (as specified in the Demand for Payment) up to but not in excess of the coverage, as defined in the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute.
 - (ii) The Trustee shall, after submitting to the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute Provider the Demand for Payment as provided in (i) above, make available to the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute Provider all records relating to the funds and accounts maintained under this Appendix A and any other Common Reserve Series Resolution.

- (iii) The Trustee shall, on receipt of money received from the draw on the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute, as specified in the Demand for Payment, credit the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account to the extent of money received pursuant to such Demand for Payment.
- (iv) The Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account is to be replenished in the following priority: (A) principal and interest on the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute is to be paid from first available Revenues; (B) after all such amounts are paid in full, amounts necessary to fund the Common Reserve Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account to the required level, after taking into account the amounts available under the Qualified Reserve Fund Substitute are to be deposited from next available Revenues.

Section 4.08. Application of Money in the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account of the Construction Fund.

On the filing from time to time with the Trustee of a requisition signed by an authorized representative of the City in the applicable form attached hereto as Exhibit C, accompanied by a voucher or other appropriate documentation as may be required by the Trustee, the Trustee will make or cause to be made disbursements from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account and the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account, as indicated on the requisition, for the payment of the applicable Costs of the Projects to be financed with the proceeds of the respective Series of 2022 Bonds, including costs of issuance.

On the completion of the Projects to be financed with the proceeds of the 2022A Bonds, the City will deliver a certificate to the Trustee stating the fact and date of such completion and stating that all of the Costs of the Projects anticipated to be paid by the City from the proceeds of the 2022A Bonds have been paid. On the receipt by the Trustee of such certificate, unless the Trustee receives written direction from the City otherwise, the Trustee will deposit the remaining balance in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Series 2022A Additional Facilities Account to the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account to be applied to the next payment due with respect to the 2022A Bonds.

On the completion of the Projects to be financed with the proceeds of the 2022B Bonds, the City will deliver a certificate to the Trustee stating the fact and date of such completion and stating that all of the Costs of the Projects anticipated to be paid by the City from the proceeds of the 2022B Bonds have been paid. On the receipt by the Trustee of such certificate, unless the Trustee receives written direction from the City otherwise, the Trustee will deposit the remaining balance in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account to the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account to be applied to the next payment due with respect to the 2022B Bonds.

Section 4.09. *Investment of Money*. Money held for the credit of all subaccounts or accounts established under this Appendix A on deposit with the Trustee are to be continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee in such Investment Obligations as the City may direct to the extent practicable. Except as otherwise permitted under the Order, any such Investment Obligations shall mature not later than the respective dates when the money held for the credit of such subaccounts or accounts will be required for the purposes intended. No Investment Obligations in any such subaccount or account may mature beyond the maturity date of the applicable series of 2022 Bonds.

The interest accruing on Investment Obligations in the subaccounts established hereunder and any profit or loss realized on the disposition or maturity of such Investment Obligations are to be credited to or charged against the following Funds, accounts and subaccounts, unless otherwise directed by the City:

interest and profit or loss resulting from each of the subaccounts established under Section 4.01 other than the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account and the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account shall be credited to or charged against the Revenue Fund, and interest and profit or loss resulting from the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account and the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account shall be credited to or charged against that respective subaccount.

Section 4.10. *Payment of Principal, Interest and Premium and Pledge of Net Revenues*. The City covenants that it will promptly pay the principal of and the interest on every 2022 Bond issued under this Appendix A at the places, on the dates and in the manner provided herein and in the 2022 Bonds, and any premium required for the retirement of the 2022 Bonds by purchase or redemption, according to the true intent and meaning thereof. The City represents and covenants that it is duly authorized under the constitution and laws of the State, particularly the Act, to issue the 2022 Bonds authorized hereby and to pledge the Net Revenues in the manner and to the extent herein and in the Order set forth; that all action on its part for the issuance of the 2022 Bonds initially issued hereunder has been duly and effectively taken; and that such 2022 Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and binding special obligations of the City according to their terms.

Except to the extent of a lien on Net Revenues from the Airport, the 2022 Bonds are not payable from the general funds of the City and do not constitute a legal or equitable pledge, lien or encumbrance on any of the properties of the City or on any of its income, receipts or revenues, except as provided in this Appendix A and the Order, and neither the credit nor the taxing power of the City are pledged for the payment of the 2022 Bonds, or the City's obligations to comply with any covenant or agreement under this Appendix A or any other agreement entered into by the City pursuant to its authority.

[End of Article IV]

ARTICLE V.

USE OF BOND PROCEEDS

The proceeds of the 2022 Bonds will be deposited in accordance with the certificate of the Finance Director delivered under Section 2.03.

[End of Article V]

ARTICLE VI.

SUPPLEMENTAL SERIES RESOLUTIONS

Section 6.01. *Supplemental Series Resolutions*. The Series Resolution and the rights and obligations of the City and the Owners may be modified or amended at the same times, in the same manner and for the same purposes as the Order, but if the modification or amendment affects only one or more of the respective Series of 2022 Bonds, the percentage to be applied under Section 1102 of the Order will be applied only to the affected Series of Outstanding 2022 Bonds.

Notwithstanding anything in the Order or the Series Resolution to the contrary, (1) any initial purchaser, underwriter or remarketing agent holding any 2022 Bonds or another Series of the Bonds issued after the issuance of the 2022 Bonds may, regardless of its intent to sell or distribute such Bonds in the future, consent as the Owner of such Bonds to any amendment or supplemental series resolution as required or permitted by this Article, including any amendment or supplemental series resolution that

adversely affects the interests of other Owners, and (2) any Owner is not entitled to receive, nor is the City required to provide, any prior notice or other documentation regarding such amendment or supplemental series resolution.

On the adoption of any supplemental series resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the Series Resolution will deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith, and the respective rights, duties and obligations under the Series Resolution, the Trustee and all Owners will thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced in all respects pursuant to the provisions of the Series Resolution as so modified and amended.

Section 6.02. **2022 Bonds Affected.** For purposes of this Appendix A, 2022 Bonds are "affected" by a supplemental series resolution if the same adversely affects or diminishes the rights of Owners against the City or the rights of the Owners in the security for such 2022 Bonds. The Trustee may in its discretion determine whether any 2022 Bonds would be affected by any supplemental series resolution and any such determination is conclusive on the Owners of all 2022 Bonds, whether theretofore or thereafter authenticated and delivered hereunder. The Trustee is not liable for any such determination made in good faith.

Section 6.03. *Exclusion of 2022 Bonds*. 2022 Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the City shall not be deemed Outstanding 2022 Bonds for the purpose of any consent or other action or any calculation of Outstanding 2022 Bonds provided for in this Article. The City, as Owner of such 2022 Bonds, is not entitled to consent or take any other action provided for in this Article. At the time of any consent or other action taken under this Article, the City shall furnish the Trustee certificates of the Finance Director, on which the Trustee may rely, describing all 2022 Bonds so to be excluded.

Section 6.04. *Responsibilities of Trustee and City Under this Article.* The Trustee and the City are entitled to exercise their discretion in determining whether or not any proposed supplemental series resolution or any term or provision therein contained is desirable, after considering the purposes of such instrument, the needs of the City, the rights and interests of the Owners, and the rights, obligations and interests of the Trustee. The Trustee is entitled to receive, and is fully protected in relying on, the opinion of counsel approved by it, who may be bond counsel for the City, as conclusive evidence that any such proposed supplemental series resolution does or does not comply with the provisions of this Appendix A, and that it is or is not proper for it, under the provisions of this Article, to accept such supplemental series resolution.

[End of Article VII]

ARTICLE VII.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 7.01. *Headings*. Any heading preceding the text of the several articles hereof, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, are solely for convenience of reference and does not constitute a part of this Appendix A or affect its meaning, construction or effect.

Section 7.02. *Application to the LGC*. The City Council hereby ratifies and confirms its request to the LGC to sell the 2022 Bonds at private sale and without advertisement in accordance with the provisions of Section 159-123 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended.

Section 7.03. *Approval of Amount of 2022 Bonds and Interest Rate.* The Finance Director and the other authorized officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed to approve the items required and provide the certificate set forth under Section 2.03.

Section 7.04. Authorization for Other Acts.

- (a) The Finance Director and other officers, agents and employees of the City and the officers and agents of the Trustee are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and things required of them by the provisions of the 2022 Bonds, the Order, the Series Resolution, this Appendix A and the Bond Purchase Agreement for the full, punctual and complete performance of the terms, covenants, provisions and agreements of the same and also to do all acts and things required of them by the provisions of this Appendix A, including the advancement of any fees and expenses in connection with the transactions described therein with the expectation that such fees and expenses will be reimbursed to the City from 2022 Bond proceeds.
- (b) The Mayor, the City Manager, the Finance Director, the Aviation Director, the City Attorney, or any of them or their deputies and designees, are further authorized and directed (without limitation except as may be expressly set forth herein) to employ and compensate advisers, bond counsel, counsel, and consultants, to take such action and to execute and deliver any such documents, deeds, certificates, undertakings, agreements or other instruments as they, with the advice of counsel, may deem necessary and appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by the Order, the Series Resolution, this Appendix A and the Bond Purchase Agreement, including the on-going administration thereof.
- Section 7.05. *Acceptance of Duties by Paying Agent.* Each Paying Agent (other than the Trustee) shall signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed on it by the Order and the Series Resolution by executing and delivering to the City and the Trustee a written acceptance thereof.
- Section 7.06. *Holidays*. Except as otherwise provided herein, whenever any payment or action to be made or taken hereunder is stated to be due on a day which is not a Business Day, such payment or action will be made or taken on the next following Business Day, and such extension of time will be included in computing interest, if any, in connection with such payment or action.
- Section 7.07. *Replacement of Registrar or Paying Agent.* If the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent initially appointed under this Appendix A resigns (whether before or after the issuance of any 2022 Bonds), or if the Finance Director reasonably determines that the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent has become incapable of performing its duties hereunder, the City may, on notice mailed to each Owner of the 2022 Bonds, if any, at such Owner's address last shown on the registration records, appoint a successor Bond Registrar or Paying Agent which meets any requirement set forth in the Order, including the prior approval by the LGC of a successor Bond Registrar. No resignation or dismissal of the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent may take effect until a successor is appointed. The same institution is not required to serve as both Bond Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder, but the City has the right to have the same institution serve as both Bond Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder. Whenever in this Appendix A the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent is named or referred to, such provision is deemed to include any successor of the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent, respectively.
- Section 7.08. *Continuing Disclosure*. The City agrees, in accordance with Rule 15c2-12 (the "*Rule*") promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "*SEC*"), to provide to the MSRB:

- (1) by not later than seven months after the end of each Fiscal Year, beginning with the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022, the audited financial statements of the City for the preceding Fiscal Year, if available, prepared in accordance with Section 159-34 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as it may be amended from time to time, or any successor statute, or if such audited financial statements are not then available, unaudited financial statements of the City for such Fiscal Year to be replaced subsequently by audited financial statements of the City to be delivered within 15 days after such audited financial statements become available for distribution;
- (2) by not later than seven months after the end of each Fiscal Year, beginning with the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022, the financial and statistical data as of a date not earlier than the end of the preceding Fiscal Year for the type of information included in the tables under the captions "THE AIRPORT AIRLINES SERVING THE AIRPORT," "AIR SERVICE AREA," and "HISTORICAL ENPLANED PASSENGERS" in the Official Statement for the 2022 Bonds, as identified in the Official Statement to the extent such items are not included in the financial statements referred to in paragraph (1) above;
- (3) in a timely manner not in excess of 10 Business Days after the occurrence of the event, notice of any of the following events with respect to the 2022 Bonds:
 - (a) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
 - (b) non-payment related defaults, if material;
 - (c) unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
 - (d) unscheduled draws on any credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
 - (e) substitution of any credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
 - (f) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 2022 Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the 2022 Bonds;
 - (g) modification of the rights of the beneficial owners of the 2022 Bonds, if material;
 - (h) call of any of the 2022 Bonds, other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions, if material, and tender offers;
 - (i) defeasance of any of the 2022 Bonds;
 - (j) release, substitution or sale of any property securing repayment of the 2022 Bonds, if material;
 - (k) rating changes;

- (l) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City;
- (m) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;
- (n) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material;
- (o) incurrence of a financial obligation of the City, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation of the City, any of which affect the beneficial owners of the 2022 Bonds, if material; and
- (p) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the City, any of which reflect financial difficulties; and
- (4) in a timely manner, notice of a failure of the City to provide required annual financial information described in (1) or (2) above on or before the date specified.

For purposes of this undertaking, "financial obligation" means (a) a debt obligation, (b) a derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation, or (c) a guarantee of either clause (a) or (b) above. The term "financial obligation" shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

The City agrees that its undertaking under this Article is intended to be for the benefit of the Owners and the beneficial owners of the 2022 Bonds and is enforceable by the Trustee or by any of them, including an action for specific performance of the City's obligations under this Article, but a failure to comply will not be an event of default under Section 802 of the Order and will not result in acceleration of the payment of the 2022 Bonds. An action must be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in this paragraph for the benefit of all of the Owners and beneficial owners of the 2022 Bonds.

The City may modify from time to time, consistent with the Rule, the information provided or the format of the presentation of such information to the extent necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the City, but:

- (1) any such modification may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law or change in the identity, nature or status of the City;
- (2) the information to be provided, as modified, would have complied with the requirements of the Rule as of the date of the Official Statement, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule as well as any changes in circumstances; and
- (3) any such modification does not materially impair the interest of the Owners or the beneficial owners, as determined by the Trustee or Bond Counsel or by the approving vote of the Owners of a majority in Outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Bonds.

Any annual financial information containing modified operating data or financial information must explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the modification and the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided.

All documents provided to the MSRB as described above are to be provided in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB and accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. The City may discharge its undertaking described above by transmitting those documents or notices in a manner subsequently required by the SEC in lieu of the manner described above.

The provisions of this Section terminate on payment, or provision having been made for payment in a manner consistent with the Rule, in full of the principal and interest with respect to the 2022 Bonds.

Section 7.09. *E-Verify*. By accepting its responsibilities under this Series Resolution, the Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent certify to the following:

The Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent understand that "E-Verify" is a federal program operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security and other federal agencies, or any successor or equivalent program used to verify the work authorization of newly hired employees pursuant to federal law in accordance with Section 64-25(5) of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended. The Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent use E-Verify to verify the work authorization of their employees in accordance with Section 64-26(a) of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended. The Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent will require that any subcontractor used in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Series Resolution certify to such subcontractor's compliance with E-Verify.

[EXHIBIT A BEGINS ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF 2022A BOND

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022A (Non-AMT)

No. RA-1

 Interest Rate
 Dated Date
 Maturity Date
 CUSIP

 %
 ______, 2022
 July 1, 20___
 161036___

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS

The City of Charlotte, North Carolina (the "City"), a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina (the "State"), for value received, promises to pay, but solely from the sources and in the manner hereinafter provided, to the Owner named above the Principal Amount stated above on the Maturity Date set forth above (or earlier as hereinafter described), and to pay such Owner at the address as it appears on the registration books kept by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee and the Paying Agent for the 2022A Bonds (the "Bond Registrar," the "Paying Agent" and the "Trustee"), at the close of business on the 15th day of the month preceding each hereinafter-described Interest Payment Date (each, a "Regular Record Date"), interest on such Principal Amount at the Interest Rate set forth above (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication (unless (i) the date of authentication precedes the first Interest Payment Date in which case this 2022A Bond will bear interest from its date of issuance, or (ii) the date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which case this 2022A Bond will bear interest from such date) until the principal hereof has been paid or provided for in accordance with the Order and the Series Resolution (hereinafter defined), payable January 1, 2023 and thereafter semiannually on January 1 and July 1 in each year (each an "Interest Payment Date"). Both principal and interest and any premium on the redemption before the maturity of all or part hereof are payable in lawful coin or currency of the United States of America and (except for interest which is payable by check or draft as stated above) are payable at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar in Charlotte, North Carolina.

THE 2022A BONDS ARE SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY. THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON THE 2022A BONDS ARE NOT PAYABLE FROM THE GENERAL FUNDS OF THE CITY, NOR DO THEY CONSTITUTE A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE, CHARGE, LIEN, OR ENCUMBRANCE ON ANY OF ITS PROPERTY OR ON ANY OF ITS INCOME, RECEIPTS, OR REVENUES EXCEPT THE FUNDS WHICH ARE PLEDGED UNDER THE ORDER AND THE SERIES RESOLUTION (HEREINAFTER DEFINED). NEITHER THE CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OR THE CITY ARE PLEDGED FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE 2022A BONDS, AND NO OWNER OF THIS 2022A BOND HAS THE RIGHT TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF THE TAXING POWER BY THE STATE OR THE CITY OR THE FORFEITURE OF ANY OF ITS PROPERTY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY DEFAULT.

The 2022A Bonds will be initially delivered by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of definitive 2022A Bonds made to the public. One definitive 2022A Bond for each maturity

will be delivered to The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), and immobilized in its custody. A book-entry system will be employed, evidencing ownership of the 2022A Bonds in Authorized Denominations (hereinafter defined) with transfers of beneficial ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by DTC. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this 2022A Bond will be payable to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the 2022A Bonds by wire transfer in immediately available funds. The City, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar and the Trustee are not responsible or liable for maintaining, supervising, or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting through such participants.

If (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the 2022A Bonds or (b) the Trustee and the City determine to discontinue the book entry system in accordance with DTC's rules and the City fails to identify another qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the City will deliver fully registered definitive 2022A Bonds in accordance with DTC's rules and procedures.

The City, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar and the Trustee have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (a) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC; (b) the payment by DTC of any amount in respect of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the 2022A Bonds; (c) the delivery or timeliness of delivery by DTC of any notice which is required or permitted under the terms of the Order and the Series Resolution (hereinafter defined) to be given to Owners; (d) the selection of Owners to receive payments in the event of any partial redemption of the 2022A Bonds; or (e) any consent given or other action taken by DTC, or its nominee.

This 2022A Bond is one of an issue of Bonds designated "Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (Non-AMT)" (the "2022A Bonds") issued under the bond order adopted by the City Council on April 24, 2017 authorizing and securing airport revenue bonds of the City, which restated, supplemented and amended the bond order originally adopted by the City Council on November 18, 1985, as amended and supplemented by Supplemental Bond Order, Number 1 adopted by the City Council on March 22, 2021, and which the City Council may further restate, supplement and amend from time to time (the "Order") and a series resolution related to the 2022 Bonds adopted by the City Council on April 11, 2022 (the "Series Resolution"). Unless the context indicates otherwise, all capitalized, undefined terms used herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the Order, the Series Resolution or the Appendix A attached to, and incorporated in, the Series Resolution. The City intends to issue its Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B (AMT) (the "2022B Bonds" and collectively with the 2022A Bonds, the "2022 Bonds") and its Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022 (the "2022 Note"), on or about the time the City issues its 2022A Bonds, under the Order. Under the Order, the City has previously issued several series of Bonds (the "Existing Bonds"). The 2022 Bonds, the 2022 Note, the Existing Bonds and any additional Bonds which may be issued under the Order are parity obligations under the Order. The 2022A Bonds are being issued to (1) refinance a portion of the 2021 BAN, (2) further finance Projects, (3) fund a portion of any necessary debt service reserves for the 2022 Bonds, (4) pay capitalized interest on the 2022A Bonds and (5) pay costs of issuing the 2022A Bonds.

The 2022A Bonds, together with interest thereon, are special obligations of the City payable solely from Revenues after payment of the Current Expenses of the Airport and constitute a valid claim of the respective Owners thereof only against the funds and other money held by the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the 2022A Bonds, which amounts are pledged and assigned pursuant to the Order for the equal and ratable payment of the 2022A Bonds and will be used for no other purpose than to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 2022A Bonds, except as may be otherwise expressly authorized in the Order and the Appendix A.

"Revenues," "Net Revenues" and "Current Expenses" are defined in the Order. Pursuant to the Order the City has, for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds, assigned Net Revenues and certain other

rights to the Trustee in trust. Reference is made to the Order and the Series Resolution for a more complete statement of the provisions thereof and of the rights of the City, the Trustee and the Owners of the 2022A Bonds. Copies of the Order and the Series Resolution are on file and may be inspected at the designated office of the Trustee in Charlotte, North Carolina. By the purchase and acceptance of this 2022A Bond, the Owner hereof signifies assent to all of the provisions of the aforementioned documents.

This 2022A Bond is issued and the Order and Series Resolution were made and entered into under and pursuant to the constitution and laws of the State, and particularly in conformity with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of General Statutes of North Carolina Section 159-80 *et seq.*, as amended.

This 2022A Bond is exchangeable on the presentation and surrender hereof at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar for the 2022A Bonds in Authorized Denominations. On surrender for registration of transfer, duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the Owner hereof or his or her attorney duly authorized in writing, the Bond Registrar will authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new fully registered 2022A Bond. The Bond Registrar may require the payment by any Owner requesting registration of transfer or exchange of 2022A Bonds of any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration of transfer or exchange. The Bond Registrar is not required to register the transfer of or exchange any 2022A Bonds selected, called or being called for redemption in whole or in part. The person in whose name this 2022A Bond is registered will be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, and payment of this 2022A Bond will be made only to or on the written order of the Owner hereof to his or her legal representative. All such payments will be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge this 2022A Bond to the extent of the sum or sums paid.

The 2022A Bonds maturing on or after Ju	aly 1, 20 may be redeemed before their maturities, at
the option of the City, from any funds that may be	available for such purpose, either in whole or in part on
any date beginning on or after	_, at the redemption price, equal to the principal amount
of 2022A Bonds to be redeemed, together with ac	ccrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption,
plus premium of	-

The 2022A Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the City, in whole or in part on any date at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, on instructions from the City, from the Net Proceeds of insurance or Eminent Domain which are deposited in the Series 2022A Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account.

The 2022A Bonds maturing on July 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part without premium on each July 1 in the following amount of the Sinking Fund Requirement per year at a redemption price equal to the amount of 2022A Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date and without premium:

<u>Year</u>	<u>AMOUNT</u>	<u>Year</u>	AMOUNT

The 2022A Bonds maturing on July 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part without premium on each July 1 in the following amount of the Sinking Fund Requirement per year at a redemption price equal to the amount of 2022A Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date and without premium:

^{*} Maturity

YEAR AMOUNT YEAR AMOUNT

Notice of redemption will be given by the Trustee not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the Redemption Date (1) to the LGC by Mail, electronic or facsimile transmission, (2)(a) to DTC or its nominee by registered or certified mail at the address provided to the Trustee by DTC or as otherwise permitted by DTC's rules and procedures or (b) if DTC or its nominee is no longer the Owner of the 2022A Bonds, by Mail to the then-registered Owners of 2022A Bonds to be redeemed at the last address shown on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar and (3) to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB") in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB.

Such notice must (1) specify the 2022A Bonds to be redeemed, the redemption date, the redemption price and the place or places where amounts due on such redemption must be payable (which must be the designated office of the Bond Registrar) and if less than all of the 2022A Bonds are to be redeemed, the numbers of the 2022A Bonds and the portions of 2022A Bonds to be redeemed, and (2) state that on the redemption date, the 2022A Bonds to be redeemed will cease to bear interest. If at the time of mailing of notice of redemption there is not on deposit with the Trustee money sufficient to redeem the 2022A Bonds called for redemption, which money is or will be available for redemption of the 2022A Bonds, such notice will state that it is conditional on the deposit of the redemption money with the Trustee not later than the opening of business on the redemption date. Any notice, once given, may be withdrawn by notice delivered in the manner set forth above, on receipt by the Trustee of written instructions from the City with respect to such withdrawal.

Failure to provide such notice to any Owner or any defect therein will not affect the validity of any proceedings for such redemption as to any other Owner to whom such notice was properly given. Failure to provide such notice to the LGC or the MSRB as provided above will not affect the validity of any proceedings for such redemption.

If money is on deposit with the Trustee to pay the redemption price of such 2022 Bonds called for redemption including premium, if any, thereon on a redemption date, such 2022 Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption as hereinabove specified will not bear interest after such redemption date and will not be considered to be Outstanding or to have any other rights under the Order other than the right to receive payment. No payment of principal will be made by the Trustee on any 2022 Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption until such 2022 Bonds or portions thereof have been delivered for payment or cancellation or the Bond Registrar has received the items required by Section 210 of the Order with respect to any mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed 2022 Bonds.

In the case of any partial redemption of 2022A Bonds, the City will select the 2022A Bonds and the maturity or maturities of the 2022A Bonds to be redeemed and DTC will select the 2022A Bonds within the same maturity pursuant to its rules and procedures or, if the book-entry system with DTC or any other securities depository has been discontinued, the Bond Registrar will select the 2022A Bonds to be redeemed by lot in such manner as the Bond Registrar in its discretion may deem proper.

If a 2022A Bond subject to redemption is in a denomination larger than the minimum Authorized Denomination, a portion of such 2022A Bond may be redeemed, but only in a principal amount such that the unredeemed portion of such 2022A Bond is equal to an Authorized Denomination. For any 2022A Bond in a denomination of more than the minimum Authorized Denomination, the Trustee shall treat each such 2022A Bond as representing a single 2022A Bond in the minimum Authorized Denomination plus that number of 2022A Bonds that is obtained by dividing the remaining principal amount of such 2022A Bond by the minimum Authorized Denomination.

^{*} Maturity

If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the Authorized Denominations of principal amount represented by any 2022A Bond is to be called for redemption, then, on written notice of intention to redeem such Authorized Denominations of principal amount of such 2022A Bond, the Owner of such 2022A Bond, on surrender of such 2022A Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment of the principal amount of such 2022A Bond, will be entitled to receive new 2022A Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of such 2022A Bonds. New 2022A Bonds representing the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of such 2022A Bonds will be issued to the Owner thereof.

If the Owner of any 2022A Bond of a denomination greater than the amount being redeemed fails to present such 2022A Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such 2022A Bond will, nevertheless, become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption to the extent of the denomination being redeemed and to that extent only.

The Order permits amendment thereto on the agreement of the City and the Trustee and with the approval of not less than 51% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding under the Order. The Order also contains provisions permitting the City and the Trustee to enter into amendments to the Order without the consent of the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding for certain purposes.

The Series Resolution permits amendment thereto on the agreement of the City and the Trustee and with the approval of not less than 51% in aggregate principal amount of the 2022A Bonds then Outstanding. Appendix A also contains provisions permitting the City and the Trustee to enter into amendments to Appendix A without the consent of the Owners of the 2022A Bonds then Outstanding for certain purposes.

Any consent or request by the Owner of this 2022A Bond is conclusive and binding on such Owner and on all future Owners of this 2022A Bond and of any 2022A Bond issued on the transfer of this 2022A Bond whether or not notation of such consent or request is made on this 2022A Bond.

This 2022A Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of North Carolina shall govern its legality, validity, enforceability and construction.

All acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this 2022A Bond and the adoption of the Order and the Series Resolution have happened, existed and have been performed as so required.

This Bond is not valid or does not become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit or security under the Order until it has been authenticated by the execution by the Bond Registrar of the certificate of authentication endorsed hereon.

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Charlotte, North Carolina has caused this 2022A Bond to be executed with the manual or facsimile signatures of the City Manager and the City Clerk, and has caused the City's official seal or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or imprinted hereon.

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

	By:
[SEAL]	City Manager
By:	

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

The issue hereof has been approved under the provisions of The State and Local Government Revenue Bond Act.

SHARON G. EDMUNDSON
Secretary of the Local Government Commission

SIGNATURE PAGE RELATING TO

THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022A (NON-AMT)

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Date of Authentication:	
, 2022	
	Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (Non-AMT) designated within-mentioned Order and Series Resolution.
	U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Bond Registrar
	By: Vice President

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

or similar face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any change whatever.

TRANSFER FEE MAY BE REQUIRED

program.

EXHIBIT B

FORM OF 2022B BOND

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022B (AMT)

No. RB-1

 INTEREST RATE
 DATED DATE
 MATURITY DATE
 CUSIP

 %
 ______, 2022
 July 1, 20___
 161036___

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS

The City of Charlotte, North Carolina (the "City"), a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina (the "State"), for value received, promises to pay, but solely from the sources and in the manner hereinafter provided, to the Owner named above the Principal Amount stated above on the Maturity Date set forth above (or earlier as hereinafter described), and to pay such Owner at the address as it appears on the registration books kept by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee and the Paying Agent for the 2022B Bonds (the "Bond Registrar," the "Paying Agent" and the "Trustee"), at the close of business on the 15th day of the month preceding each hereinafter-described Interest Payment Date (each, a "Regular Record Date"), interest on such Principal Amount at the Interest Rate set forth above (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication (unless (i) the date of authentication precedes the first Interest Payment Date in which case this 2022B Bond will bear interest from its date of issuance, or (ii) the date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which case this 2022B Bond will bear interest from such date) until the principal hereof has been paid or provided for in accordance with the Order and the Series Resolution (hereinafter defined), payable January 1, 2023 and thereafter semiannually on January 1 and July 1 in each year (each an "Interest Payment Date"). Both principal and interest and any premium on the redemption before the maturity of all or part hereof are payable in lawful coin or currency of the United States of America and (except for interest which is payable by check or draft as stated above) are payable at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar in Charlotte, North Carolina.

THE 2022B BONDS ARE SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY. THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON THE 2022B BONDS ARE NOT PAYABLE FROM THE GENERAL FUNDS OF THE CITY, NOR DO THEY CONSTITUTE A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE, CHARGE, LIEN, OR ENCUMBRANCE ON ANY OF ITS PROPERTY OR ON ANY OF ITS INCOME, RECEIPTS, OR REVENUES EXCEPT THE FUNDS WHICH ARE PLEDGED UNDER THE ORDER AND THE SERIES RESOLUTION (HEREINAFTER DEFINED). NEITHER THE CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OR THE CITY ARE PLEDGED FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE 2022B BONDS, AND NO OWNER OF THIS 2022B BOND HAS THE RIGHT TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF THE TAXING POWER BY THE STATE OR THE CITY OR THE FORFEITURE OF ANY OF ITS PROPERTY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY DEFAULT.

The 2022B Bonds will be initially delivered by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of definitive 2022B Bonds made to the public. One definitive 2022B Bond for each maturity

will be delivered to The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), and immobilized in its custody. A book-entry system will be employed, evidencing ownership of the 2022B Bonds in Authorized Denominations (hereinafter defined) with transfers of beneficial ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by DTC. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this 2022B Bond will be payable to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the 2022B Bonds by wire transfer in immediately available funds. The City, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar and the Trustee are not responsible or liable for maintaining, supervising, or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting through such participants.

If (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the 2022B Bonds or (b) the Trustee and the City determine to discontinue the book entry system in accordance with DTC's rules and the City fails to identify another qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the City will deliver fully registered definitive 2022B Bonds in accordance with DTC's rules and procedures.

The City, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar and the Trustee have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (a) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC; (b) the payment by DTC of any amount in respect of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the 2022B Bonds; (c) the delivery or timeliness of delivery by DTC of any notice which is required or permitted under the terms of the Order and the Series Resolution (hereinafter defined) to be given to Owners; (d) the selection of Owners to receive payments in the event of any partial redemption of the 2022B Bonds; or (e) any consent given or other action taken by DTC, or its nominee.

This 2022B Bond is one of an issue of Bonds designated "Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B (AMT)" (the "2022B Bonds") issued under the bond order adopted by the City Council on April 24, 2017 authorizing and securing airport revenue bonds of the City, which restated, supplemented and amended the bond order originally adopted by the City Council on November 18, 1985, as amended and supplemented by Supplemental Bond Order, Number 1 adopted by the City Council on March 22, 2021, and which the City Council may further restate, supplement and amend from time to time (the "Order") and a series resolution related to the 2022 Bonds adopted by the City Council on April 11, 2022 (the "Series Resolution"). Unless the context indicates otherwise, all capitalized, undefined terms used herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the Order, the Series Resolution or the Appendix A attached to, and incorporated in, the Series Resolution. The City intends to issue its Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (Non-AMT) (the "2022A Bonds" and collectively with the 2022B Bonds, the "2022 Bonds") and its Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022 (the "2022 Note"), on or about the time the City issues its 2022B Bonds, under the Order. Under the Order, the City has previously issued several series of Bonds (the "Existing Bonds"). The 2022 Bonds, the 2022 Note, the Existing Bonds and any additional Bonds which may be issued under the Order are parity obligations under the Order. The 2022B Bonds are being issued to (1) refinance a portion of the 2021 BAN, (2) further finance Projects, (3) fund a portion of any necessary debt service reserves for the 2022 Bonds, (4) pay capitalized interest on the 2022B Bonds and (5) pay costs of issuing the 2022B Bonds.

The 2022B Bonds, together with interest thereon, are special obligations of the City payable solely from Revenues after payment of the Current Expenses of the Airport and constitute a valid claim of the respective Owners thereof only against the funds and other money held by the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the 2022B Bonds, which amounts are pledged and assigned pursuant to the Order for the equal and ratable payment of the 2022B Bonds and will be used for no other purpose than to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 2022B Bonds, except as may be otherwise expressly authorized in the Order and the Appendix A.

"Revenues," "Net Revenues" and "Current Expenses" are defined in the Order. Pursuant to the Order the City has, for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds, assigned Net Revenues and certain other

rights to the Trustee in trust. Reference is made to the Order and the Series Resolution for a more complete statement of the provisions thereof and of the rights of the City, the Trustee and the Owners of the 2022B Bonds. Copies of the Order and the Series Resolution are on file and may be inspected at the designated office of the Trustee in Charlotte, North Carolina. By the purchase and acceptance of this 2022B Bond, the Owner hereof signifies assent to all of the provisions of the aforementioned documents.

This 2022B Bond is issued and the Order and Series Resolution were made and entered into under and pursuant to the constitution and laws of the State, and particularly in conformity with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of General Statutes of North Carolina Section 159-80 *et seq.*, as amended.

This 2022B Bond is exchangeable on the presentation and surrender hereof at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar for the 2022B Bonds in Authorized Denominations. On surrender for registration of transfer, duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the Owner hereof or his or her attorney duly authorized in writing, the Bond Registrar will authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new fully registered 2022B Bond. The Bond Registrar may require the payment by any Owner requesting registration of transfer or exchange of 2022B Bonds of any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration of transfer or exchange. The Bond Registrar is not required to register the transfer of or exchange any 2022B Bonds selected, called or being called for redemption in whole or in part. The person in whose name this 2022B Bond is registered will be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, and payment of this 2022B Bond will be made only to or on the written order of the Owner hereof to his or her legal representative. All such payments will be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge this Bond to the extent of the sum or sums paid.

The 2022B Bonds maturing on or after Ju	aly 1, 20 may be redeemed before their maturities, at
the option of the City, from any funds that may be	available for such purpose, either in whole or in part on
any date beginning on or after	_, at the redemption price, equal to the principal amount
of 2022B Bonds to be redeemed, together with ac	ccrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption,
plus premium of	•

The 2022B Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the City, in whole or in part on any date at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, on instructions from the City, from the Net Proceeds of insurance or Eminent Domain which are deposited in the Series 2022B Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account.

The 2022B Bonds maturing on July 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part without premium on each July 1 in the following amount of the Sinking Fund Requirement per year at a redemption price equal to the amount of 2022B Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date and without premium:

	<u>YEAR</u>	<u>Amount</u>	YEAR	<u>Amount</u>
* Maturity				

The 2022B Bonds maturing on July 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part without premium on each July 1 in the following amount of the Sinking Fund Requirement per year at a redemption price equal to the amount of 2022B Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date and without premium:

YEAR AMOUNT YEAR AMOUNT

Notice of redemption will be given by the Trustee not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the Redemption Date (1) to the LGC by Mail, electronic or facsimile transmission, (2)(a) to DTC or its nominee by registered or certified mail at the address provided to the Trustee by DTC or as otherwise permitted by DTC's rules and procedures or (b) if DTC or its nominee is no longer the Owner of the 2022B Bonds, by Mail to the then-registered Owners of 2022B Bonds to be redeemed at the last address shown on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar and (3) to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB") in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB.

Such notice must (1) specify the 2022B Bonds to be redeemed, the redemption date, the redemption price and the place or places where amounts due on such redemption must be payable (which must be the designated office of the Bond Registrar) and if less than all of the 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed, the numbers of the 2022B Bonds and the portions of 2022B Bonds to be redeemed, and (2) state that on the redemption date, the 2022B Bonds to be redeemed will cease to bear interest. If at the time of mailing of notice of redemption there is not on deposit with the Trustee money sufficient to redeem the 2022B Bonds called for redemption, which money is or will be available for redemption of the 2022B Bonds, such notice will state that it is conditional on the deposit of the redemption money with the Trustee not later than the opening of business on the redemption date. Any notice, once given, may be withdrawn by notice delivered in the manner set forth above, on receipt by the Trustee of written instructions from the City with respect to such withdrawal.

Failure to provide such notice to any Owner or any defect therein will not affect the validity of any proceedings for such redemption as to any other Owner to whom such notice was properly given. Failure to provide such notice to the LGC or the MSRB as provided above will not affect the validity of any proceedings for such redemption.

If money is on deposit with the Trustee to pay the Redemption Price of the 2022B Bonds called for redemption including premium, if any, thereon on a Redemption Date, 2022B Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption as hereinabove specified will not bear interest after such Redemption Date and will not be considered to be Outstanding or to have any other rights under the Order other than the right to receive payment. No payment of principal will be made by the Bond Registrar on any 2022B Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption until such 2022B Bonds or portions thereof have been delivered for payment or cancellation or the Bond Registrar has received the items required by the Order with respect to any mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed 2022B Bonds.

In the case of any partial redemption of 2022B Bonds, the City will select the 2022B Bonds and the maturity or maturities of the 2022B Bonds to be redeemed and DTC will select the 2022B Bonds within the same maturity pursuant to its rules and procedures or, if the book-entry system with DTC or any other securities depository has been discontinued, the Bond Registrar will select the 2022B Bonds to be redeemed by lot in such manner as the Bond Registrar in its discretion may deem proper.

If a 2022B Bond subject to redemption is in a denomination larger than the minimum Authorized Denomination, a portion of such 2022B Bond may be redeemed, but only in a principal amount such that the unredeemed portion of such 2022B Bond is equal to an Authorized Denomination. For any 2022B Bond in a denomination of more than the minimum Authorized Denomination, the Trustee shall treat each such 2022B Bond as representing a single 2022B Bond in the minimum Authorized Denomination plus that number of 2022B Bonds that is obtained by dividing the remaining principal amount of such 2022B Bond by the minimum Authorized Denomination.

^{*} Maturity

If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the Authorized Denominations of principal amount represented by any 2022B Bond is to be called for redemption, then, on written notice of intention to redeem such Authorized Denominations of principal amount of such 2022B Bond, the Owner of such 2022B Bond, on surrender of such 2022B Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment of the principal amount of such 2022B Bond, will be entitled to receive new 2022B Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of such 2022B Bonds will be issued to the Owner thereof.

If the Owner of any 2022B Bond of a denomination greater than the amount being redeemed fails to present such 2022B Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such 2022B Bond will, nevertheless, become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption to the extent of the denomination being redeemed and to that extent only.

The Order permits amendment thereto on the agreement of the City and the Trustee and with the approval of not less than 51% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding under the Order. The Order also contains provisions permitting the City and the Trustee to enter into amendments to the Order without the consent of the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding for certain purposes.

The Series Resolution permits amendment thereto on the agreement of the City and the Trustee and with the approval of not less than 51% in aggregate principal amount of the 2022B Bonds then Outstanding. Appendix A also contains provisions permitting the City and the Trustee to enter into amendments to Appendix A without the consent of the Owners of the 2022B Bonds then Outstanding for certain purposes.

Any consent or request by the Owner of this 2022B Bond is conclusive and binding on such Owner and on all future Owners of this 2022B Bond and of any 2022B Bond issued on the transfer of this 2022B Bond whether or not notation of such consent or request is made on this 2022B Bond.

This 2022B Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of North Carolina shall govern its legality, validity, enforceability and construction.

All acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this 2022B Bond and the adoption of the Order and the Series Resolution have happened, existed and have been performed as so required.

This Bond is not valid or does not become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit or security under the Order until it has been authenticated by the execution by the Bond Registrar of the certificate of authentication endorsed hereon.

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Charlotte, North Carolina has caused this 2022B Bond to be executed with the manual or facsimile signatures of the City Manager and the City Clerk, and has caused the City's official seal or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or imprinted hereon.

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

	By:
[SEAL]	City Manager
By:	

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

The issue hereof has been approved under the provisions of The State and Local Government Revenue Bond Act.

SHARON G. EDMUNDSON
Secretary of the Local Government Commission

SIGNATURE PAGE RELATING TO

THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022B (AMT)

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Date of Authentication:	
, 2022	
	e Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B (AMT) designated herein-mentioned Order and Series Resolution.
	U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Bond Registrar
	By: Vice President

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

(Please print or typewrite Name and Address, including Zip Code, and Federal Taxpayer Identification or Social Security Number of Assignee) the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints Attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. Dated: Signature guaranteed by: NOTICE: Signature must be guaranteed by a **NOTICE**: The signature to this assignment must participant of the Securities Transfer Agent correspond with the name as it appears on the face of the within Bond in every particular, Medallion Program ("STAMP") or similar

program.

without alteration, enlargement or any change whatever.

TRANSFER FEE MAY BE REQUIRED

EXHIBIT C

FORM OF REQUISITION

214 North Try Charlotte, No	ust Company, National Association on Street, 27th Floor rth Carolina 28202 rporate Trust Services
Re:	Disbursement from the [Series 2022A] [Series 2022B] Subaccount of the Series 2022 Additional Facilities Account of the Construction Fund relating the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bonds, Series [2022A] [2022B] (the "Series [2022A] [2022B] Bonds")
Dear	:
the City Cour the City hereb	ant to Section 4.10 of Appendix A to the Series Resolution adopted on April 11, 2022 by scil of Charlotte, North Carolina (the "City") relating to the Series [2022A] [2022B] Bonds, by requests you to disburse from the Series [2022A] [2022B] Subaccount of the Series 2022 cilities Account as follows:
1.	The amount to be disbursed is \$
2. should be made	The name and address of the person, firm or corporation to whom the disbursement le is as follows:
3.	The purpose of the disbursement is to
4. rendered or fo	The disbursement herein requested is for work actually performed, for service actually rematerials, supplies or equipment actually delivered, installed or fabricated.
DATE	D thisday of
	CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
	By: City Representative

EXTRACTS FROM MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL

* * *

A Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina was duly held in the Meeting Chamber at the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center in Charlotte, North Carolina, the regular place of meeting, at 6:30 p.m. on April 11, 2022:

Members Present: Eiselt, Ajmera, Winston, Phipps, Egleston, Graham, Watlington, Johnson, Newton

Driggs

Members Absent: Bokhari

* * * * * *

Councilmember Egleston/Graham introduced the following resolution (the "*Resolution*"), a summary of which had been provided to each Councilmember, copy of which was available with the City Clerk and which was read by title:

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF AIRPORT REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE OF THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE AND VARIOUS AGREEMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH TRANSACTIONS

WHEREAS, the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, a municipal corporation in the State of North Carolina (the "City"), owns and operates within the City a public airport known as the Charlotte Douglas International Airport (together with such additions thereto as may be made from time to time, the "Airport");

WHEREAS, the City is empowered, under the constitution and laws of the State of North Carolina (the "State"), particularly The State and Local Government Revenue Bond Act (Article 5 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina), as the same may be amended from time to time (the "Act"), to issue its revenue bonds and notes for the purpose of financing airport facilities and refunding prior bonds issued for such purposes;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the "City Council") on April 24, 2017 adopted a bond order authorizing and securing airport revenue bonds of the City, which restated, supplemented and amended the bond order originally adopted by the City Council on November 18, 1985, as amended and supplemented by Supplemental Bond Order, Number 1 adopted by the City Council on March 22, 2021, and which the City Council may further restate, supplement and amend from time to time (the "Order");

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and hereby further determines that it is in the City's best interest to finance and refinance the costs of Airport facilities and improvements in accordance with the Airport's capital improvement plan (the "*Projects*");

WHEREAS, the City has proceeded with financing some of the Projects on an interim basis from the proceeds of bond anticipation notes, including the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2021 (the "2021 BAN");

- WHEREAS, the City has determined to issue another airport revenue bond anticipation note to be known as "City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022" (the "Note") in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$300,000,000 in order to (1) refinance the 2021 BAN, (2) further finance a portion of the Projects, (3) pay capitalized interest on the Note and (4) pay the costs of issuing the Note;
- **WHEREAS**, Bank of America, N.A. (the "Purchaser") has agreed to purchase the Note under the terms of the Order, this Resolution and a Note Purchase and Advance Agreement among the City, the Local Government Commission of North Carolina (the "LGC") and the Purchaser (the "Note Purchase Agreement");
- **WHEREAS**, a copy of the form of the Note Purchase Agreement has been filed with the City Clerk and is available to the City Council; and
- WHEREAS, in order to satisfy the requirements of Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the treasury regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, the "Code"), the City Council held a public hearing on April 11, 2022, after notice being duly given (the "Public Hearing Notice"), regarding the issuance of the Note in connection with the financing and refinancing the Projects, and now desires to approve the issuance of the Note and the financing and refinancing of the Projects with the proceeds thereof in accordance with the Code.
 - WHEREAS, the City has applied to LGC for approval of the Note as required by the Act;
- **NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED** by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina that the City Council has determined to adopt, in accordance with Section 208 of the Order, this Resolution authorizing the issuance of the Note under the Order, as follows:
- **Section 1.** For purposes of this Resolution, all capitalized, undefined words have the meanings ascribed to them in Appendix A attached hereto (the "Appendix"). The Appendix is incorporated into this Resolution by reference. This Resolution is a Series Resolution under the Order.
- **Section 2.** The Note is to be issued by the City for the purpose of providing funds, together with other available funds of the City, to (1) refinance the 2021 BAN, (2) further finance a portion of the Projects, (3) pay capitalized interest on the Note and (4) pay the costs of issuing the Note, as set out in the documents attached to the City's application to the LGC and as described in the Appendix.
- **Section 3.** The City will issue not to exceed \$300,000,000 in total aggregate principal amount of its Note.
- Section 4. The City Council has requested that the Note be sold by the LGC at private sale without advertisement to the Purchaser at such price as the LGC determines to be in the best interest of the City and as set forth in the City's application. The award of the Note by the LGC to the Purchaser is approved and the Authorized Officers (as defined below) are directed to authenticate and deliver the Note to and upon the order of the Purchaser on payment of the purchase price therefor as further described in Appendix A. The Note will bear interest at a variable rate as set forth in the Appendix and the Note Purchase Agreement.
- **Section 5.** The Note is to be dated as of its date of issuance and the principal of and interest on the Note will be payable as set forth in the Appendix.

- **Section 6.** The City covenants to take such action as may be required in the opinion of Bond Counsel to cause the Note and all actions of the City with respect to the proceeds thereof to comply with the Code. The Chief Financial Officer, or her designee, is hereby authorized to execute a tax certificate in order to comply with Section 148 of the Code.
- Section 7. The form and content of the Note Purchase Agreement are in all respects authorized, approved and confirmed. The Mayor, the City Manager and the Chief Financial Officer, including anyone serving as such in an interim capacity, and their respective designees, individually or collectively (the "Authorized Signatories"), are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the Note Purchase Agreement for and on behalf of the City, including necessary counterparts, in substantially the form and content presented to the City Council, but with such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein as they deem necessary, desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of the City Council's approval of any and all such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein. From and after the execution and delivery of the Note Purchase Agreement, the Mayor, the City Manager, the Chief Financial Officer, the Aviation Director and the City Clerk, including anyone serving as such in an interim capacity, and their respective designees, individually or collectively (the "Authorized Officers") are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Note Purchase Agreement as executed, including any on-going administration. Such execution by the Authorized Officers constitutes conclusive evidence of the City Council's approval thereof.
- **Section 8.** No stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in the Note, this Resolution, the Note Purchase Agreement or any other instrument related to the issuance of the Note is deemed to be a stipulation, obligation or agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the City in his or her individual capacity, and no such officer, agent or employee is personally liable on the Note or subject to personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.
- Section 9. The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do any and all other acts and to execute any and all other documents, which they, in their discretion, deem necessary and appropriate in order to consummate the transactions contemplated by (1) this Resolution and (2) the other documents presented to this meeting and to execute and administer such transactions; except that none of the above is authorized or empowered to do anything or execute any document which is in contravention, in any way, of (a) the specific provisions of this Resolution, (b) any agreement to which the City is bound or (c) any applicable law, statute, ordinance, rule or regulation of the United States of America or the State. Any provision in this Resolution that authorizes more than one officer of the City to take certain actions shall be read to permit such officers to take the authorized actions either individually or collectively.
- **Section 10.** Pursuant to and in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 147(f) of the Code, the City Council hereby approves (a) the issuance of the Note in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the amount listed in the Public Hearing Notice and (b) the financing and refinancing of the Projects.
- Section 11. From the adoption of this Resolution until the date of the issuance of the Note hereunder, the Authorized Signatories are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to make any changes, modifications, additions or deletions to the Appendix as to them seem necessary, desirable or appropriate to implement the intent of this Resolution. Such changes, modifications, additions or deletions to the Appendix shall be set forth in a certificate executed by an Authorized Signatory on the date of issuance of the Note hereunder. Such execution by an Authorized Signatory constitutes conclusive evidence of the City Council's approval thereof.

- **Section 12.** All acts and doings of the City and its officials authorized by this Resolution that are in conformity with the purposes and intents of this Resolution and in the furtherance of the issuance of the Note and the execution, delivery and performance of the Note Purchase Agreement are in all respects ratified, approved and confirmed.
- Section 13. If any one or more of the agreements or provisions herein contained is held contrary to any express provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or for any reason whatsoever is held invalid, then such covenants, agreements or provisions are null and void and separable from the remaining agreements and provisions and will in no way affect the validity of any of the other agreements and provisions hereof or of the Note authorized hereunder.
- Section 14. This Resolution is adopted with the intent that the laws of the State govern its construction.
- **Section 15**. All resolutions or parts thereof of the City Council in conflict with the provisions herein contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed.
 - *Section 16.* This Resolution is effective on its adoption.

April 11, 2022 Resolution Book 52, Page 638

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA)	
CITY OF CHARLOTTE) ss:)	
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE AND VERNISACTIONS" adopted by the C	ne foregoing is a ISSUANCE OF AI VARIOUS AGREEM City Council of the reference having	rk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, true and exact copy of a resolution entitled "A RPORT REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE OF ENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH City of Charlotte, North Carolina, at a meeting held been made in Minute Book 155, and recorded in
WITNESS my hand and the day of April , 2022.	ne corporate seal o	Stephanie C. Kelly City Clerk City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this the 11th

April 11, 2022 Resolution Book 5	2, Page 639		

APPENDIX A

TO

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF:

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA AIRPORT REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>Page</u>
ARTICLE I. Definitio	ns	1
Section 1.01.	Meaning of Words and Terms	1
Section 1.02.	Parties Interested Herein	
Section 1.03.	Ratification	5
ARTICLE II. Authoriz	zation, Form, Issuance, Delivery And Registration of Note	5
Section 2.01.	Authorization of Financing and Authorization of the Note	
Section 2.02.	Issuance of the Note	
Section 2.03.	Delivery of the Note	
Section 2.04.	Details of the Note; Payment	
Section 2.05.	Arbitrage and Tax Covenants	
Section 2.06.	Restriction on Transfer of the Note	
ARTICLE III. Prepayi	ment of the Note	8
Section 3.01.	Privilege of Prepayment and Prepayment Price	
Section 3.02.	Optional Prepayment of the Note	
Section 3.03.	Mandatory Prepayment of the Note	
Section 3.04.	Notice of Prepayment	
Section 3.05.	Payment of Prepayment Price	
Section 3.06.	Record of Prepayment	
Section 3.07.	No Partial Prepayment After Default	
ARTICLE IV. Advance	ces, Accounts and Funds	9
Section 4.01.	Establishment of Accounts	9
Section 4.02.	Revenues Received by the City	9
Section 4.03.	Application of Money in the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the	
	Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account	10
Section 4.04.	Application of Money in the Series 2022 Note Revenue Bond	
	Redemption Account	10
Section 4.05.	Advance of Note Proceeds	11
Section 4.06.	Application of Note Proceeds	11
Section 4.07.	Investment of Money	12
Section 4.08.	Payment of Principal and Interest and Pledge of Net Revenues	
ARTICLE V. Supplen	nental Series Resolutions	12
Section 5.01.	Supplemental Series Resolutions	12
Section 5.02.	Responsibilities of Trustee and City Under this Article	13
	aneous Provisions	13
Section 6.01.	Headings	
Section 6.02.	Application to Local Government Commission	
Section 6.03.	Authorization for Other Acts	
Section 6.04.	Acceptance of Duties by Paying Agent	
Section 6.05.	Holidays	
Section 6.06.	Replacement of Registrar or Paying Agent	
Section 6.07.	E-Verify	14

April 11, 2022 Resolution Book 52, Page 641

EXHIBIT A FORM OF NOTE EXHIBIT B FORM OF REQUISITION

ARTICLE I.

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. *Meaning of Words and Terms*.

- (a) *Definitions*. All words and phrases defined in Article I of the Order are incorporated herein by reference. In addition, the following terms, except where the context indicates otherwise, have the respective meanings set forth below:
- "Advance" means all advances of the purchase price of the Note made by the Purchaser under the Note Purchase Agreement on or before the Advance Termination Date.
 - "Advance Termination Date" has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 4.05.
 - "Amortization Period" has the meaning assigned in the Note Purchase Agreement.
- "Appendix A" means this Appendix A which is attached to, and incorporated in, the Series Resolution.
 - "Applicable Spread" has the meaning set forth in the Note Purchase Agreement.
- "Authorized Denomination" means \$250,000 and multiples of \$1 in excess thereof; provided, however, as long as the Note is owned by the Purchaser, Authorized Denominations will be the aggregate outstanding amount of the Advance.
- "Bond Counsel" means an attorney or firm of attorneys of recognized national standing in the field of law relating to municipal bonds, selected by the City.
- "Bond Registrar" means U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, or any successor or successors thereto appointed pursuant to the Order, the Series Resolution or this Appendix A.
- "Business Day" means, with respect to the Note, any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a legal holiday on which commercial banks are authorized or required by law to be closed for business in Charlotte, North Carolina.
 - "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as from time to time amended.
 - "Default Event" has the meaning set forth in the Note Purchase Agreement.
 - "Default Rate" means the Term Loan Rate plus three percent (3%) per annum.
- "Determination of Taxability" means, with respect to the Note, a determination that all or a portion of the interest on the Note is included in gross income of the Owner thereof for federal income tax purposes, as a result of an action, or failure to act, by the City, which determination shall be deemed to have been made upon the occurrence of the first to occur of the following: (1) the date on which such Owner is advised in writing by the Commissioner or any District Director of the Internal Revenue Service that, as a result of an action, or failure to act, by the City, all or a portion of the interest on the Note is included in the gross income of the Owner for federal income tax purposes; (2) the date on which the City receives notice from such Owner that the Owner has been advised in writing that the Internal Revenue Service has issued a statutory notice of deficiency or similar notice to the Owner which asserts, in effect,

that all or a portion of the interest with respect to the Note received by the Owner is included in the gross income of the Owner for federal income tax purposes, as a result of an action, or failure to act, by the City; (3) the date on which the City is advised in writing by the Commissioner or any District Director of the Internal Revenue Service that there has been issued a public or private ruling of the Internal Revenue Service that all or a portion of the interest on the Note is included in the gross income of the Owner thereof for federal income tax purposes as a result of an action, or failure to act, by the City; or (4) the date on which the City is advised in writing by counsel to the Owner of the Note that a final determination, from which no further right of appeal exists, has been made by a court of competent jurisdiction in the United States of America in a proceeding with respect to which the City has been given written notice and an opportunity, at the expense of the City, to participate and defend that interest on the Note is included in the gross income of such Owner for federal income tax purposes, as a result of an action, or failure to act, by the City.

"Federal Funds Rate" means, for any day, the rate per annum equal to the weighted average of the rates on overnight federal funds transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System, as published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York on the Business Day next succeeding such day; provided that (a) if such day is not a Business Day, the Federal Funds Rate for such day shall be such rate on such transactions on the next preceding Business Day as so published on the next succeeding Business Day, and (b) if no such rate is so published on such next succeeding Business Day, the Federal Funds Rate for such day shall be the average rate (rounded upward, if necessary, to a whole multiple of 1/100 of 1%) charged to Bank of America, N.A. on such day on such transactions as determined by Bank of America, N.A.

"Finance Director" has the meaning set forth in the Bond Order which, as of the date of the Series Resolution is the Chief Financial Officer of the City.

"Full Funding Date" means June 2, 2025, unless extended in writing by the Owner of the Note.

"Initial Term Interest Rate" means with respect to each Interest Rate Period, a per annum rate of interest equal to the SIFMA Index plus the Applicable Spread (which is initially 0.25% per annum (25 bppa), as may be adjusted in accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement), rounded up to the fifth place past the decimal.

"Initial Term Period" means the period commencing on the Closing Date and ending on, but not including, the Full Funding Date.

"Interest Payment Date" means (a) except during the Amortization Period, each December 1 and June 1, beginning December 1, 2022, (b) during the Amortization Period, each date on which the Amortization Amount (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) is payable under the Note Purchase Agreement and (c) any other date that interest is required to be paid on the Note under the Note Purchase Agreement.

"Interest Rate" means, with respect to the Note, (a) during the Initial Term Period, a per annum rate of interest equal to the Initial Term Interest Rate, and (b) during the Term Loan Period, the Term Loan Rate; provided, however, that (1) upon a Determination of Taxability, the Note will bear interest during the Taxable Period at a rate equal to the Taxable Rate, (2) upon the occurrence and during the continuation of an Default Event (as defined in the Purchase Agreement), the Interest Rate shall be a per annum rate of interest equal to the Default Rate and (3) in no event shall the Interest Rate exceed the Maximum Interest Rate.

"Interest Rate Period" means the period commencing on the date of issuance of the Note and ending on the day preceding the first Reset Date, and thereafter commencing on each Reset Date and ending on the day preceding the next succeeding Reset Date.

"Mail" means first-class United States mail, postage prepaid.

"Maximum Interest Rate" means the lesser of (a) 20% per annum and (b) the maximum rate of interest permitted by applicable law.

"Note" means the up to \$300,000,000 City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022 issued pursuant to the Order, the Series Resolution and this Appendix A.

"Note Purchase Agreement" means the Note Purchase and Advance Agreement among the City, the Purchaser and the Local Government Commission related to the Note.

"Order" means the bond order adopted by the City Council on April 24, 2017 authorizing and securing airport revenue bonds of the City, which restated, supplemented and amended the bond order originally adopted by the City Council on November 18, 1985, as amended and supplemented by Supplemental Bond Order, Number 1 adopted by the City Council on March 22, 2021, and which the City Council may further restate, supplement and amend from time to time (the "Order").

"Owner" means, with respect to the Note, the registered owner of the Note.

"Paying Agent" means the Bond Registrar or any successor or successors thereto appointed pursuant to the Order or this Appendix A.

"Prepayment Date" means the date on which the Note or any portion thereof has been called for prepayment or is to be prepaid pursuant to this Appendix A.

"Prime Rate" means on any day, the rate of interest in effect for such day as publicly announced from time to time by the Purchaser as its "prime rate." The "prime rate" is a rate set by the Purchaser based on various factors including the Purchaser's costs and desired return, general economic conditions and other factors, and is used as a reference point for pricing some loans, which may be priced at, above, or below such announced rate. Any change in such rate announced by the Purchaser shall take effect at the opening of business on the day specified in the public announcement of such change.

"Principal Amount" means the sum of all Advances less any prepayment of Note. Advances and prepayments shall be recorded (which records may be electronic) on the Table of Advances and Table of Partial Prepayment attached to the Note, however failure to record an Advance or prepayment shall not affect the Principal Amount outstanding under the Note.

"Projects" has the meaning set forth in the Series Resolution.

"Purchaser" means Bank of America, N.A., as the initial Owner of the Note, and its successors and assigns.

"Record Date" means the day next preceding each Interest Payment Date, whether or not a Business Day.

"Reset Date" means Thursday of each week.

"Series Resolution" means the Series Resolution adopted by the City Council on April 11, 2022 relating to the Note, the appendices attached thereto, and any amendments or supplements thereto.

"Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account" means the account created and so designated by Section 4.01.

"Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.

"Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.

"Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.

"Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account" means the subaccount created and so designated by Section 4.01.

"SIFMA Index" means, for any date computed, the level of the index which is issued weekly and which is compiled from the weekly interest rate resets of tax-exempt variable rate issues included in a database maintained by Municipal Market Data which meet specific criteria established from time to time by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association and issued on Wednesday of each week, or if any Wednesday is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day.

If the SIFMA Index is no longer published, then "SIFMA Index" shall mean the S&P Weekly High Grade Index. If the S&P Weekly High Grade Index is no longer published, then "SIFMA Index" shall mean the prevailing rate determined by the Purchaser for tax-exempt state and local government bonds meeting criteria determined in good faith by the Purchaser to be comparable under the circumstances to the criteria used by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association to determine the SIFMA Index immediately prior to the date on which the Securities and Financial Markets Association ceased publication of the SIFMA Index. If SIFMA Index shall be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of the determining the interest rate on the Note.

"Stated Principal Amount" means \$300,000,000.

"Taxable Date" means the date on which interest on the Note is first includable in gross income of an Owner (including, without limitation, any previous Owner) thereof as a result of a Determination of Taxability.

"Taxable Period" means the period beginning on the date interest on the Note first becomes subject to inclusion in gross income as a result of a Determination of Taxability, and ends on the date (if any) such interest is no longer included in gross income.

"Taxable Rate" means an interest rate per annum equal to the product of the interest rate on the Note then in effect multiplied by 1.27.

"Term Loan Period" means the period, if any, commencing on June 2, 2025 and ending on the earlier of the maturity date of the Note or the date the Note has been prepaid in whole prior to maturity.

"Term Loan Rate" means the greater of (i) the Prime Rate plus 1.00%, (ii) the Federal Funds Rate plus 2.00% and (iii) 7.0%; provided that the Term Loan Rate shall not exceed the Maximum Interest Rate.

"2021 BAN" means the City's Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2021.

- (b) Construction. This Appendix A, except where the context by clear implication herein otherwise requires, is subject to and to be construed in the same manner as provided by Section 102 of the Order.
- Section 1.02. *Parties Interested Herein.* Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Appendix A, nothing herein expressed or implied is intended or to be construed to confer on or to give to any Person, other than the City, the City Council, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee, the Purchaser and the owners from time to time of the Note, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason hereof or any covenant, condition or stipulation hereof. All the covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements herein contained by and on behalf of the City are for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City, the City Council, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee, the Purchaser and the owners of the Note, except as herein otherwise provided.
- Section 1.03. *Ratification*. All action heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the provisions of this Appendix A) by the City directed toward the purposes described in Section 2 of the Series Resolution, the sale and delivery of the Note for those purposes and the acceptance and execution of the Note Purchase Agreement is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

[End of Article I]

ARTICLE II.

AUTHORIZATION, FORM, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY AND REGISTRATION OF NOTE

- Section 2.01. Authorization of Financing and Authorization of the Note. The financing and refinancing of the Projects and the other uses of proceeds set forth in the Series Resolution are hereby authorized, approved and confirmed. The Note is hereby authorized, approved and confirmed and will be issued, under and pursuant to the constitution and the laws of the State, including the Act, the Order, the Series Resolution and this Appendix A in the amount and subject to the conditions herein provided for the purposes described in Section 2 of the Series Resolution. No Note may be issued under the provisions of this Appendix A and the Order except in accordance with this Article. The total principal amount of the Note that may be issued is hereby expressly limited to the Stated Principal Amount, except as provided in Sections 204 and 210 of the Order.
- Section 2.02. *Issuance of the Note.* The Note will be designated "City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022." The Note will be issuable as fully registered note in any Authorized Denomination. The Note will be numbered R-1. The Note will be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A with such appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are permitted or required by this Appendix A.
- Section 2.03. *Delivery of the Note.* The Note will be deposited with the Bond Registrar for authentication, but before the Note may be authenticated and delivered by the Bond Registrar to the State Treasurer for redelivery to the Purchaser, there must be filed with the Trustee the following:
 - (a) a copy, certified by the City Clerk, of the Order;
 - (b) a copy, certified by the City Clerk, of the Series Resolution adopted by the City Council for the Note;

- (c) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Deputy Secretary of the Local Government Commission, of the resolution of the Local Government Commission approving the issuance of and awarding the Note;
- (d) evidence of compliance with the provisions of Section 716 of the Bond Order; and
- (e) such other documents as are required to be delivered to the Trustee under the Note Purchase Agreement in connection with the issuance of the Note.

When the documents mentioned in this Section have been filed with the Trustee and when the Note has been executed and authenticated as required by the Order and Series Resolution, the Trustee shall deliver the Note to the State Treasurer for redelivery to or on the order of the Purchaser, but only on payment to the Trustee of the Initial Advance under the Note, all as further set forth in the Note Purchase Agreement. The Trustee is entitled to rely on the resolutions and certificates mentioned in this Section as to all matters stated therein.

Section 2.04. Details of the Note; Payment.

(a) The Note will mature, subject to prepayment as set forth herein, on June 2, 2028 and will bear interest at the Interest Rate. Interest payable on the Note shall be determined based on the Principal Amount of the Note. Interest payable on the Note shall be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed in a 365/366 day year as the case may be. The amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date shall be calculated by the Purchaser in accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement and confirmed by the Trustee. Interest on the Note will be payable in arrears.

In the event a Taxable Date occurs, the City hereby agrees to pay to the Owner, as and when interest is otherwise due and payable (A) an amount equal to the difference between (1) the amount of interest paid to the Owner on the Note during the period in which interest on the Note is includable in the gross income of the Owner beginning on the Taxable Date and (2) the amount of interest that would have been paid to the Owner during such Taxable Period had the Note borne the Taxable Rate, and (B) an amount equal to any interest, penalties or charges owed by the Owner as a result of interest on the Note becoming includable in the gross income of the Owner, together with any and all reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, or other out of pocket costs incurred by the Owner in connection therewith. The City will also pay such other amounts required by the Note Purchase Agreement.

The Note will bear interest during the Term Loan Period at the Term Loan Rate.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this section, on the occurrence and continuation of a Default Event under the Purchase Agreement with respect to the Note, from and after the effective date of such Default Event, the interest rate on the Note will be established at all times equal to the Default Rate, such rate not to exceed the Maximum Interest Rate.

(b) Both the principal of and the interest on the Note are payable in any lawful coin or currency of the United States of America which on the respective dates of payment thereof is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. The Note shall bear interest from its date until its principal sum has been paid, but if such Note has matured or has been called for prepayment and the Prepayment Date has occurred and funds are available for the payment thereof in full in accordance with the terms of the Order, such Note shall then cease to bear

interest as of the maturity date or Prepayment Date, as applicable. The Note will be dated as of its date of issuance, except that a Note issued in exchange for or on the registration of transfer of the Note will be dated as of the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication thereof, unless (1) the date of such authentication precedes the first Interest Payment Date, in which case it will be dated as of the date of the initial issuance of the Note or (2) the date of such authentication is an Interest Payment Date to which interest on the Note has been paid in full or duly provided for in accordance with the terms of this Appendix A, in which case it will be dated as of such Interest Payment Date; except that if, as shown by the records of the Bond Registrar, interest on the Note is in default, the Note executed and delivered in exchange for or on registration of transfer of the Note will be dated as of the date to which interest on the Note has been paid in full. If no interest has been paid on the Note, the Note executed and delivered in exchange for or on the registration of transfer of the Note will be dated as of the initial issuance of the Note.

- (c) The Note is payable at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar without the need for presentation and surrender of the Note, except at maturity or prepayment in whole. Interest on the Note will be paid by the Bond Registrar by check or draft mailed on the Interest Payment Date to the Owner as its name and address appear on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date. At the written request of the Owner, principal and interest may be payable by wire transfer at the address specified in writing by the Owner to the Bond Registrar by the Record Date. CUSIP number identification, if such is assigned to the Note, with appropriate dollar amounts for the CUSIP number shall accompany all payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Note, whether by check or by wire transfer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the Owner of the Note is the Purchaser, all amounts due under the Note will be paid and will be payable in accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement.
- (d) U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, Charlotte, North Carolina, is hereby appointed as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent with respect to the Note.

Section 2.05. Arbitrage and Tax Covenants. The City covenants that it will not take or permit, or omit to take or cause to be taken, any action that would adversely affect the exclusion from federal income taxation of the interest on the Note and, if it should take or permit, or omit to take or cause to be taken, any such action, the City will take or cause to be taken all lawful actions within its power necessary to rescind or correct such actions or omissions promptly upon having knowledge thereof. The City acknowledges that the continued exclusion of interest on the Note from an Owner's gross income for federal income tax purposes depends, in part, on compliance with the arbitrage limitations imposed by Section 148 of the Code. The City covenants that it will comply with all the requirements of Section 148 of the Code, including the rebate requirements, and that it will not permit at any time any of the proceeds of the Note or other funds under their control to be used, directly or indirectly, to acquire any asset or obligation, the acquisition of which would cause the Note to be "arbitrage bonds" for purposes of Section 148 of the Code.

Section 2.06. **Restriction on Transfer of the Note.** This Note may only be in an Authorized Denomination and may not be transferred other than to (a) an affiliate of the Purchaser, (b) a trust or custodial arrangement established by the purchaser or one of its affiliates, the owners of the beneficial interests in which are limited to qualified institutional buyers, or (c) to a person that is a qualified institutional buyer that is a commercial bank having a combined capital and surplus, determined as of the date of any transfer pursuant to this section, of \$5,000,000,000 or more that has executed and delivered to the City an investor letter in the form of Exhibit A to the Note Purchase Agreement. In no event shall the Note be transferred to any person or entity who holds the Note for the benefit of a person or entity that is

not a qualified institutional buyer or as part of a pool of assets in which persons that are not qualified institutional buyers may invest, such as a mutual fund or retirement plan.

The Bond Registrar will have no obligation to pay any amounts due on the Note to anyone other than the Owner of the Note as shown on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar.

[End of Article II]

ARTICLE III.

PREPAYMENT OF THE NOTE

Section 3.01. *Privilege of Prepayment and Prepayment Price*. The Note is prepayable, on notice as provided below, at the times, at the prepayment prices and on the terms contained in this Article III and in Article III of the Order.

Section 3.02. *Optional Prepayment of the Note.* The City may prepay the Note, either in whole or in part, on any Business Day at a prepayment price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus the accrued interest thereon to the Prepayment Date.

Section 3.03. *Mandatory Prepayment of the Note*. The City shall prepay the Note in whole on the Full Funding Date at a prepayment price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus the accrued interest thereon to the Prepayment Date. If the Note is eligible for the Amortization Period under Section 3(c) of the Note Purchase Agreement, however, then the City will not be required to prepay the Note on the Full Funding Date and the Note will continue to be Outstanding and will be prepaid during the Amortization Period as set forth in Section 3(c) of the Note Purchase Agreement. If the City provides to the Purchaser and the Trustee written notice by noon on the Full Funding Date of its intent to repay the Note pursuant to the terms of Section 3(c) of the Note Purchase Agreement, accompanied by a certificate signed by the Finance Officer to the effect that the City is, as of the Full Funding Date, in compliance with all conditions set forth in Section 3(c) of the Note Purchase Agreement, then the Note shall be deemed eligible for the Amortization Period under Section 3(c) of the Note Purchase Agreement.

Section 3.04. *Notice of Prepayment.* The City will provide written notice to the Trustee of the optional prepayment of the Note not less than 35 days (or such lesser number of days as the Trustee may accept), and notice of such prepayment under Section 3.02 will be given by the Trustee not less than 30 days (or such lesser period of time as may be agreed to by the Owner of the Note) before the Prepayment Date (1) to the Local Government Commission by Mail or electronic transmission, and (2) by Mail or by such other means as may be permitted by the Owner to the then-registered Owner of the Note at the last address shown on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar. During the Amortization Period, notice of prepayment will be given in accordance with Section 3(c) of the Note Purchase Agreement.

Such notice must (1) specify the Prepayment Date, the prepayment price and the place or places where amounts due on such prepayment must be payable and if less than all of the Note is to be prepaid, the portion of the Note to be prepaid, and (2) state that on the Prepayment Date, the Note or portion thereof to be prepaid will cease to bear interest. The notice of prepayment may state that it is conditional on the deposit of the prepayment money with the Trustee not later than the Prepayment Date, and such notice will be of no effect unless such money is so deposited.

If the Owner provides the City and the Trustee with a pay-off letter for the proposed Prepayment Date, then no prepayment notice is required under this section.

Failure to provide such notice to the Local Government Commission will not affect the validity of any proceedings for such prepayment.

If money is on deposit with the Trustee to pay the prepayment price of the Note, or portion thereof, called for prepayment on a Prepayment Date, the Note or portion thereof so called for prepayment as hereinabove specified will not bear interest after such Prepayment Date and will not be considered to be Outstanding or to have any other rights under the Order other than the right to receive payment.

- Section 3.05. *Payment of Prepayment Price*. The City will cause to be deposited in the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account, solely out of Net Revenues, an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Note, or portion thereof, to be prepaid on the Prepayment Date, and the Note, or portion thereof, will be deemed to be paid within the meaning of Section 305 of the Order.
- Section 3.06. *Record of Prepayment*. The Trustee will record any prepayments of the Note on the Table of Partial Prepayment attached to the Note (or otherwise kept on the Trustee's official books and records, which may be electronic records).
- Section 3.07. *No Partial Prepayment After Default.* Anything in this Appendix A to the contrary notwithstanding, if an Event of Default occurs and is continuing hereunder there will be no prepayment of less than all of the Note Outstanding

[End of Article III]

ARTICLE IV.

ADVANCES, ACCOUNTS AND FUNDS

- Section 4.01. *Establishment of Accounts*. The following subaccounts are hereby established with, and shall be held by, the Trustee under the Order:
 - (a) Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account of the Construction Fund;
 - (b) Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account;.
 - (c) Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account;
 - (d) Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account; and
 - (e) Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account.

The Note will not be secured by any subaccount of the Revenue Bond Reserve Account.

- Section 4.02. *Revenues Received by the City*. On or before the 25th day of each month after the Note is issued (or such other date set forth below), the City shall, subject to the provisions of the Order, deposit or cause to be deposited from Net Revenues with the Trustee the following amounts and the Trustee shall apply such amounts to the various accounts and subaccounts specified herein:
 - (a) into the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account an amount necessary, after taking into account money transferred from the PFC Revenue Account or

otherwise deposited therein by the City, to have funds on hand on the 25th day of each month immediately preceding an Interest Payment Date to pay the next maturing installment of interest on the principal amount of the Note then Outstanding; and

- (b) subject to subsection (c) below, beginning on the 25th day of the month before the mandatory prepayment of the Note, into the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Principal Account an amount, after taking into account money transferred from the PFC Revenue Account or otherwise deposited therein by the City, to have funds on hand to pay in full the principal amount of the Note then Outstanding at maturity; and
- (c) if the Note is eligible to be paid during the Amortization Period, then during the Amortization Period, into the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account, an amount in substantially equal monthly installments necessary, after taking into account money transferred from the PFC Revenue Account or otherwise deposited therein by the City, to prepay the portion of the Note required to be called by mandatory prepayment on the next payment date therefor as required pursuant to Section 3.03 of this Appendix A.

In each month following a month in which the Trustee has failed to make any deposit required by this Section, the City shall pay, but only from Net Revenues, and the Trustee shall deposit, in addition to the amounts then due, an amount sufficient to cure the deficiency in the deposits in the prior months unless such deficiency has been cured by a transfer of money to such fund or account from other funds and accounts created hereby, pursuant to the terms of this Appendix A.

Section 4.03. Application of Money in the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account. On each mandatory prepayment date during the Amortization Period as required under Section 3.03, the Trustee shall withdraw from the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account the amount required to pay the principal portion of the prepayment price of the portion of the Note so called for prepayment. The amount of interest on the Note so called for prepayment shall be paid from the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account.

If at any date there is money in the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund Account and no portion of the Note is then Outstanding, the Trustee shall withdraw such money and deliver all remaining amounts to the City.

If, in any Fiscal Year, the City shall prepay a portion of the Note in excess of the aggregate principal amount of the Note required to be prepaid under Section 3.03 during such Fiscal Year, then the Trustee shall file with the City not later than the 20th day before the next August 1 a statement identifying the amount of such excess. The City shall thereafter cause a certificate of the Finance Officer to be filed with the Trustee and the Purchaser not later than the 10th day before such August 1, setting forth with respect to the amount of such excess the Fiscal Years in which the sinking fund payments due under Section 3.03 with respect to Note are to be reduced and the amount by which such payments are to be reduced.

The expenses incurred in connection with any prepayment of the Note shall be paid by the City from the Operating Fund or from any other available money.

Section 4.04. *Application of Money in the Series 2022 Note Revenue Bond Redemption Account.* From the money in the Series 2022 Note Revenue Bond Redemption Subaccount, the Trustee shall, on a date permitted by this Appendix A, prepay the Note or such portion thereof as will exhaust the money then held in the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account as nearly as may be. The Trustee shall pay the accrued interest on the Note or such portion thereof to be prepaid to

the date of prepayment from the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account and the principal portion of the prepayment price of the Note or such portion thereof from the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account. The Trustee shall withdraw from the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Redemption Account and set aside the respective amounts required to pay the principal portion of the prepayment price of the Note or such portion thereof so called for prepayment.

On the prepayment of the Note or a portion thereof pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the Trustee shall file with the City a statement setting forth the date of prepayment, the amount of the prepayment price of the Note or such portion called for prepayment, and the amount paid as interest thereon. The expense incurred by the Trustee in connection with the purchase or prepayment of any such Note shall be paid by the City from the Operating Fund or from any other available money.

Section 4.05. Advance of Note Proceeds. The City and the Trustee acknowledge and agree that prior to the earliest to occur of (a) the date when the sum of the aggregate Advances made hereunder equals the Stated Principal Amount, (b) the date on which the Purchaser's obligation to make Advances under the Note Purchase Agreement terminates (as reflected in a written notice delivered by the Purchaser to the City and the Trustee) or (c) the Full Funding Date (the "Advance Termination Date"), the proceeds of the Note will be disbursed in installments through the making of Advances by the Purchaser in accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement. The date and amount of each Advance shall be noted on the Table of Advances attached to the Note (or otherwise kept on the Trustee's official books and records, which may be electronic records); provided that the failure to record any such Advance on the Table of Advances shall not affect the Principal Amount due. In no event may the total amount of all Advances exceed the Stated Principal Amount. Following the Advance Termination Date, no additional Advances may be made. On the Advance Termination Date, the positive difference, if any, between the Stated Principal Amount and the aggregate principal amount of all Advances made under the Note Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to have been prepaid automatically and without any further notice or act by the Trustee, the City or any other Person. Any such automatic prepayment of principal shall not be taken into consideration in determining the Principal Amount of the Note and shall not be recorded on the Table of Partial Prepayment attached to the Note.

Section 4.06. Application of Note Proceeds.

- (a) On the date the Note is issued, the Purchaser will provide an Advance in an amount determined by the City in accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement and Trustee shall deposit such amounts in the Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account.
- (b) The Proceeds from each subsequent Advance will be deposited by the Purchaser with the Trustee, and the Trustee shall deposit such amounts in the Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account or, if such Proceeds are to be used to be capitalized interest, the Series 2022 Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account, as applicable.

On the filing from time to time with the Trustee of a requisition signed by an authorized representative of the City in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, accompanied by a voucher or other appropriate documentation as may be required by the Trustee, the Trustee will make or cause to be made disbursements from the Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account for the payment of the Costs of the Projects related to the Note.

On the completion of the Projects to be financed with the proceeds of the Note, the City will deliver a certificate to the Trustee stating the fact and date of such completion and stating that all of the Costs of the Projects anticipated to be paid by the City from the proceeds of the Note have been paid. On

the receipt by the Trustee of such certificate, unless the Trustee receives written direction from the City otherwise, the Trustee will deposit the remaining balance in the Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account to the Series 2022 Note Subaccount of the Revenue Bond Interest Account to be applied to the next payment due with respect to the Note.

Section 4.07. *Investment of Money*. Money held for the credit of all subaccounts or accounts established under this Appendix A on deposit with the Trustee are to be continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee in such Investment Obligations as the City may direct to the extent practicable. Any such Investment Obligations shall mature not later than the respective dates when the money held for the credit of such subaccounts or accounts will be required for the purposes intended.

The interest accruing on Investment Obligations in the subaccounts established hereunder and any profit or loss realized on the disposition or maturity of such Investment Obligations are to be credited to or charged against the following Funds, accounts and subaccounts: interest and profit or loss resulting from each of the subaccounts established under Section 4.01 other than the Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account shall be credited to or charged against the Revenue Fund, and interest and profit or loss resulting from the Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account shall be credited to or charged against that subaccount.

Section 4.08. *Payment of Principal and Interest and Pledge of Net Revenues*. The City covenants that it will promptly pay the principal of and the interest on the Note at the places, on the dates and in the manner provided herein, in the Note and in the Note Purchase Agreement, according to the true intent and meaning thereof. The City represents and covenants that it is duly authorized under the constitution and laws of the State, particularly the Act, to issue the Note authorized hereby and to pledge the Net Revenues in the manner and to the extent herein and in the Order set forth; that all action on its part for the issuance of the Note initially issued hereunder has been duly and effectively taken; and that such Note in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and binding special obligations of the City according to their terms.

Except to the extent of a lien on Net Revenues from the Airport, the Note is not payable from the general funds of the City and does not constitute a legal or equitable pledge, lien or encumbrance on any of the properties of the City or on any of its income, receipts or revenues, except as provided in this Appendix A and the Order, and neither the credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged for the payment of the Note, or the City's obligations to comply with any covenant or agreement under this Appendix A or any other agreement entered into by the City pursuant to its authority. The Note is being issued in anticipation of the issuance of revenue bonds that the City expects to issue before the Full Funding Date, the proceeds of which are expected to be used to pay all or a portion of the principal of and interest on the Note on or before the Full Funding Date. As such, the Note is further secured by a pledge, charge, and lien on the proceeds of the revenue bonds in anticipation of the sale of which the Note is issued, if and when issued under the Order.

[End of Article IV]

ARTICLE V.

SUPPLEMENTAL SERIES RESOLUTIONS

Section 5.01. *Supplemental Series Resolutions*. The Series Resolution and the rights and obligations of the City and the Owner may be modified or amended at the same times, in the same manner and for the same purposes as the Order, but if the modification or amendment affects only the Note, the percentage to be applied under Section 1102 of the Order will be applied only to the Outstanding Note.

Notwithstanding anything in the Order or the Series Resolution to the contrary, (1) any initial purchaser, underwriter or remarketing agent holding the Note or a series of the Bonds issued after the issuance of the Note may, regardless of its intent to sell or distribute the Note or such Bonds in the future, consent as the Owner of the Note or such Bonds to any amendment or supplemental series resolution as required or permitted by this Article, including any amendment or supplemental series resolution that adversely affects the interests of other Owners, and (2) any Owner is not entitled to receive, nor is the City required to provide, any prior notice or other documentation regarding such amendment or supplemental series resolution.

Section 5.02. *Responsibilities of Trustee and City Under this Article.* The Trustee and the City are entitled to exercise their discretion in determining whether or not any proposed supplemental series resolution or any term or provision therein contained is desirable, after considering the purposes of such instrument, the needs of the City, the rights and interests of the Owner, and the rights, obligations and interests of the Trustee. The Trustee is entitled to receive, and is fully protected in relying on, the opinion of counsel approved by it, who may be Bond Counsel, as conclusive evidence that any such proposed supplemental series resolution does or does not comply with the provisions of this Appendix A, and that it is or is not proper for it, under the provisions of this Article, to accept such supplemental series resolution.

[End of Article V]

ARTICLE VI.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 6.01. *Headings*. Any heading preceding the text of the several articles hereof, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, are solely for convenience of reference and does not constitute a part of this Appendix A or affect its meaning, construction or effect.

Section 6.02. *Application to Local Government Commission*. The City Council hereby ratifies and confirms its request to the Local Government Commission to sell the Note at private sale and without advertisement in accordance with the provisions of Section 159-123 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended.

Section 6.03. Authorization for Other Acts.

- (a) The Finance Director and other officers, agents and employees of the City and the officers and agents of the Trustee are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and things required of them by the provisions of the Note, the Order, the Series Resolution, this Appendix A and the Note Purchase Agreement for the full, punctual and complete performance of the terms, covenants, provisions and agreements of the same and also to do all acts and things required of them by the provisions of this Appendix A, including the advancement of any fees and expenses in connection with the transactions described therein with the expectation that such fees and expenses will be reimbursed to the City from Note proceeds.
- (b) The Mayor, the City Manager, the Finance Director, the Aviation Director, the City Attorney, or any of them or their deputies and designees, are further authorized and directed (without limitation except as may be expressly set forth herein) to employ and compensate advisers, bond counsel, counsel, and consultants, to take such action and to execute and deliver any such documents, deeds, certificates, undertakings, agreements or other instruments as they, with the advice of counsel, may deem necessary and appropriate to effect the transactions

contemplated by the Order, the Series Resolution, this Appendix A and the Note Purchase Agreement.

Section 6.04. *Acceptance of Duties by Paying Agent*. Each Paying Agent (other than the Trustee) shall signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed on it by the Order and the Series Resolution by executing and delivering to the City and the Trustee a written acceptance thereof.

Section 6.05. *Holidays*. Except as otherwise provided herein, whenever any payment or action to be made or taken hereunder is stated to be due on a day which is not a Business Day, such payment or action will be made or taken on the next following Business Day, and such extension of time will be included in computing interest, if any, in connection with such payment or action.

Section 6.06. *Replacement of Registrar or Paying Agent*. If the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent initially appointed under this Appendix A resigns at any time or if the Finance Director reasonably determines that the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent has become incapable of performing its duties hereunder, the City may, on notice mailed to each Owner of the Note, if any, at such Owner's address last shown on the registration records, appoint a successor Bond Registrar or Paying Agent which meets any requirement set forth in the Order, including the prior approval by the Local Government Commission of a successor Bond Registrar. No resignation or dismissal of the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent may take effect until a successor is appointed. The same institution is not required to serve as both Bond Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder, but the City has the right to have the same institution serve as both Bond Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder. Whenever in this Appendix A the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent is named or referred to, such provision is deemed to include any successor of the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent, respectively.

Section 6.07. *E-Verify*. By accepting its responsibilities under the Series Resolution, the Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent certify to the following:

The Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent understand that "E-Verify" is a federal program operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security and other federal agencies, or any successor or equivalent program used to verify the work authorization of newly hired employees pursuant to federal law in accordance with Section 64-25(5) of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended. The Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent use E-Verify to verify the work authorization of their employees in accordance with Section 64-26(a) of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended. The Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent will require that any subcontractor used in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Series Resolution certify to such subcontractor's compliance with E-Verify.

EXHIBIT A

NO OFFERING CIRCULAR OR MEMORANDUM, OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR OTHER DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED OR PROVIDED BY THE ISSUER IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING AND SALE OF THIS NOTE. THIS NOTE MAY ONLY BE IN AN AUTHORIZED DENOMINATION AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OTHER THAN TO (A) AN AFFILIATE OF THE PURCHASER WHO IS A "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, (B) A TRUST OR CUSTODIAL ARRANGEMENT ESTABLISHED BY THE PURCHASER OR ONE OF ITS AFFILIATES, THE OWNERS OF THE BENEFICIAL INTERESTS IN WHICH ARE LIMITED TO QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS, OR (C) TO A PERSON THAT IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER THAT IS A COMMERCIAL BANK HAVING A COMBINED CAPITAL AND SURPLUS, DETERMINED AS OF THE DATE OF ANY TRANSFER PURSUANT TO THIS PARAGRAPH, OF \$5,000,000,000 OR MORE THAT HAS EXECUTED AND DELIVERED TO THE CITY AN INVESTOR LETTER IN THE FORM OF EXHIBIT A TO THE NOTE PURCHASE AND ADVANCE AGREEMENT REFERENCED IN THE SERIES RESOLUTION AS DEFINED IN THIS NOTE. IN NO EVENT SHALL THIS NOTE BE TRANSFERRED TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY WHO HOLDS THIS NOTE FOR THE BENEFIT OF A PERSON OR ENTITY THAT IS NOT A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER OR AS PART OF A POOL OF ASSETS IN WHICH PERSONS THAT ARE NOT OUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS MAY INVEST, SUCH AS A MUTUAL FUND OR RETIREMENT PLAN.

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA AIRPORT REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2022

No. R-1 \$300,000,000

INTEREST RATEDATED DATEMATURITY DATEVariable, as set forth herein[June 2, 2022][June 2, 2028]

REGISTERED OWNER: BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.

STATED PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: THREE HUNDRED MILLION DOLLARS

The City of Charlotte, North Carolina (the "City"), a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina (the "State"), for value received, promises to pay, but solely from the sources and in the manner hereinafter provided, to the Owner named above the Stated Principal Amount set forth above or the Principal Amount (as hereinafter defined), whichever is less, on the Maturity Date set forth above (or earlier as hereinafter described). This Note is being issued under the bond order adopted by the City Council on April 24, 2017 authorizing and securing airport revenue bonds of the City, which restated, supplemented and amended the bond order originally adopted by the City Council on November 18, 1985, as amended and supplemented by Supplemental Bond Order, Number 1 adopted by the City Council on March 22, 2021, and which the City Council may further restate, supplement and amend from time to time (the "Order") and a series resolution related to the Note adopted by the City Council on April 11, 2022 (the "Series Resolution"). The City further promises to pay such Owner at the address as it appears on the registration books kept by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee and the Paying Agent for this Note (the "Bond Registrar," the "Paying Agent" and the "Trustee"), at the close of business on the day preceding each hereinafter-described Interest Payment Date (each, a "Record Date"), interest at the Interest Rate described in the Series Resolution, which is initially a per annum rate of interest equal to the SIFMA Index plus 0.25% per annum (25 bppa), subject to adjustment and a maximum rate, as set forth in the Series Resolution and, on the lesser of (1) the Stated Principal Amount or (2) the sum of the Advances made by the Owner pursuant to the Series Resolution

and as reflected in the "Table of Advances" attached hereto or kept in the Trustee's records (which may be electronic records) (the "*Principal Amount*"). Interest on this Note will be payable on each Interest Payment Date (as defined in the Series Resolution) from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication (unless (1) the date of such authentication precedes the first Interest Payment Date, in which case interest with respect thereto shall be payable from the date of issuance of this Note or (2) the date of such authentication is an Interest Payment Date to which interest on this Note has been paid in full or duly provided for in accordance with the terms of the Order, in which case interest with respect thereto shall be payable from such Interest Payment Date) until the Principal Amount shall have been paid or provided for in accordance with the Order. Interest payable on this Note shall be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed in a 365/366 day year as the case may be.

THIS NOTE IS A SPECIAL OBLIGATION OF THE CITY. THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON THIS NOTE ARE NOT PAYABLE FROM THE GENERAL FUNDS OF THE CITY, NOR DOES IT CONSTITUTE A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE, CHARGE, LIEN, OR ENCUMBRANCE ON ANY OF ITS PROPERTY OR ON ANY OF ITS INCOME, RECEIPTS, OR REVENUES EXCEPT THE FUNDS WHICH ARE PLEDGED UNDER THE ORDER AND THE SERIES RESOLUTION (HEREINAFTER DEFINED). NEITHER THE CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OR THE CITY ARE PLEDGED FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THIS NOTE, AND NO OWNER OF THIS NOTE HAS THE RIGHT TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF THE TAXING POWER BY THE STATE OR THE CITY OR THE FORFEITURE OF ANY OF ITS PROPERTY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY DEFAULT.

Both principal and interest on this Note are payable in lawful coin or currency of the United States of America which on the respective dates of payment thereof is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. This Note is payable at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar without the need for presentation and surrender of this Note, except on maturity or prepayment in whole of this Note. Interest on this Note will be paid by the Bond Registrar by check or draft mailed on the Interest Payment Date to the Owner as its name and address appear on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date. At the written request of the Owner, principal and interest may be payable by wire transfer at the address specified in writing by the Owner to the Bond Registrar by the Record Date. CUSIP number identification, if such is assigned to this Note, with appropriate dollar amounts for the CUSIP number shall accompany all payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Note, whether by check or by wire transfer.

This Note is designated "Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022" (the "Note") issued under the Order and the Series Resolution. Unless the context indicates otherwise, all capitalized, undefined terms used herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the Order, the Series Resolution or the Appendix A attached to, and incorporated in, the Series Resolution. Under the Order, the City has previously issued several series of Bonds (the "Existing Bonds"). This Note, the Existing Bonds and any additional Bonds which may be issued under the Order are parity obligations under the Order.

This Note is being issued to (1) refinance the 2021 BAN, (2) further finance a portion of the Projects, (3) pay capitalized interest on this Note and (4) pay the costs of issuing this Note.

This Note, together with interest thereon, is a special obligation of the City payable solely from Revenues after payment of the Current Expenses of the Airport and constitutes a valid claim of the Owner thereof only against the funds and other money held by the Trustee for the benefit of the Owner of this Note, which amounts are pledged and assigned pursuant to the Order for the equal and ratable payment of this Note and the other Bonds issued under the Order. This Note is being issued in anticipation of the issuance of revenue bonds that the City expects to issue before the Full Funding Date, the proceeds of which are expected to be used to pay all or a portion of the principal of and interest on this Note on or before the Full Funding Date. As such, this Note is further secured by a pledge, charge, and lien on the

proceeds of the revenue bonds in anticipation of the sale of which this Note is issued, if and when issued under the Order.

"Revenues," "Net Revenues" and "Current Expenses" are defined in the Order. Pursuant to the Order the City has, for the benefit of the Owner of the Note, assigned Net Revenues and certain other rights to the Trustee in trust. Reference is made to the Order and Series Resolution for a more complete statement of the provisions thereof and of the rights of the City, the Trustee and the Owners of the Bonds and this Note. Copies of the Order and the Series Resolution are on file and may be inspected at the designated office of the Trustee in Charlotte, North Carolina. By the purchase and acceptance of this Note, the Owner hereof signifies assent to all of the provisions of the aforementioned documents.

This Note is issued and the Order and Series Resolution were adopted under and pursuant to the constitution and laws of the State, and particularly in conformity with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of General Statutes of North Carolina Section 159-80 *et seq.*, as amended.

This Note is exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender hereof at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar for a Note of other Authorized Denominations. On surrender for registration of transfer, duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the Owner hereof or his or her attorney duly authorized in writing, the Bond Registrar will authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new fully registered Note. The Registrar may require the payment by any Owner requesting registration of transfer or exchange of the Note of any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration of transfer or exchange. The Registrar is not required to register the transfer of or exchange any portion of this Note selected, called or being called for prepayment in whole or in part. The person in whose name this Note is registered will be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, and payment of this Note will be made only to or upon the written order of the Owner hereof to his or her legal representative. All such payments will be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge this Note to the extent of the sum or sums paid.

The City may prepay this Note, either in whole or in part, on any Business Day at a prepayment price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus the accrued interest thereon to the Prepayment Date.

The City shall prepay the Note in whole on the Full Funding Date at a prepayment price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus the accrued interest thereon to the Prepayment Date. If the Note is eligible for the Amortization Period under Section 3(c) of the Note Purchase Agreement, however, the City will not be required to prepay the Note on the Full Funding Date and the Note will continue to be Outstanding and will be prepaid during the Amortization Period as set forth in Section 3(c) of the Note Purchase Agreement.

Notice of optional prepayment will be given as set forth in the Series Resolution.

If money is on deposit with the Trustee to pay the prepayment price of this Note, or portion thereof, called for prepayment on a Prepayment Date, this Note or portion thereof so called for prepayment will not bear interest after such Prepayment Date and will not be considered to be Outstanding or to have any other rights under the Order other than the right to receive payment.

The Trustee will record any prepayments of the Note on the Table of Partial Prepayment attached to this Note (or otherwise kept on the Trustee's official books and records, which may be electronic).

The Order permits amendment thereto on the agreement of the City and the Trustee and with the approval of not less than 51% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding under the Order. The Order also contains provisions permitting the City and the Trustee to enter into amendments to the Order without the consent of the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding for certain purposes which do not affect adversely the interest of the Owners of the Bonds.

The Series Resolution permits amendment thereto on the agreement of the City and the Trustee and with the approval of not less than 51% in aggregate principal amount of the Note then Outstanding. The Series Resolution also contains provisions permitting the City and the Trustee to enter into amendments to the Series Resolution without the consent of the Owner of the Note then Outstanding for certain purposes which do not affect adversely the interest of the Owner of the Note.

Any consent or request by the Owner of this Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such Owner and upon all future Owners of this Note and of any Note issued upon the transfer of this Note whether or not notation of such consent or request is made upon this Note.

This Note will be non-transferable, except as set forth on the face of this Note. The Bond Registrar will have no obligation to pay any amounts due on this Note to anyone other than the Owner of the Note as shown on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar.

This Note is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of North Carolina shall govern its legality, validity, enforceability and construction.

All acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note and the adoption of the Order and the Series Resolution have happened, existed and have been performed as so required.

This Note is not valid or does not become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit or security under the Order until it has been authenticated by the execution by the Bond Registrar of the certificate of authentication endorsed hereon.

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Charlotte, North Carolina has caused this Note to be executed with the manual or facsimile signatures of the City Manager and the City Clerk, and has caused the City's official seal or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or imprinted hereon.

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

	Ву:
[SEAL]	City Manager
By:	

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

The issue hereof has been approved under the provisions of The State and Local Government Revenue Bond Act.

SHARON G. EDMUNDSON
Secretary of the Local Government Commission

SIGNATURE PAGE RELATING TO

THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA AIRPORT REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2022

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Date of Authentication:	
, 2022	
This is the Airport Revenue B the provisions of the within-mentioned	ond Anticipation Note, Series 2022 designated herein issued under Order and Series Resolution.
	U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Bond Registrar
	By: Vice President

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

NOTICE: Signature must be guaranteed by a participant of the Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program ("STAMP") or similar program.

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears on the face of the within Note in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any change whatever.

TRANSFER FEE MY BE REQUIRED

TABLE OF ADVANCES

Upon receipt of any Advance described in the Series Resolution related to the Note, the Trustee shall make the appropriate notation on the table below (or otherwise keep on the Trustee's official books and records, which may be electronic):

<u>Date</u>	Installment <u>Amount Paid</u>	Total Principal Payments	Signature of Bond Registrar

TABLE OF PARTIAL PREPAYMENTS

Upon all partial prepayments (whether optional, mandatory or otherwise) the above Note may be surrendered to the Trustee for the appropriate notation by it on the table below (or otherwise keep on the Trustee's official books and records, which may be electronic). The Trustee's records relating to the outstanding principal amount of the Note shall in all cases prevail:

<u>Date</u>	Amount <u>Prepaid</u>	Remaining Unpaid Principal Amount	Signature of <u>Trustee</u>

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

EXHIBIT B

FORM OF REQUISITION

214 North Tryon Street, 27th Floor Charlotte, North Carolina 28202 Attention: Corporate Trust Services Re: Disbursement from Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account relating the City of Charlotte, North Carolina Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022 (the "Note") Dear Pursuant to Section 4.06 of Appendix A to the Series Resolution adopted on April 11, 2022 relating to the Note by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina (the "City"), the City hereby requests you to disburse from the Series 2022 Note Additional Facilities Account as follows: 1. The amount to be disbursed is \$______. 2. The name and address of the person, firm or corporation to whom the disbursement should be made is as follows: The purpose of the disbursement is to ______. 3. The disbursement herein requested is for work actually performed, for service actually rendered or for materials, supplies or equipment actually delivered, installed or fabricated. DATED this ____day of ______, _____. CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

City Representative

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE AND MECKLENBURG COUNTY FOR A TAX INCREMENT REIMBURSEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF GREENVILLE NORTH

WHEREAS, The Drakeford Company (the "Developer") is proposing to develop the a pedestrian oriented multi-use redevelopment on approximately 7 acres at the southwest corner of Statesville Avenue and Oaklawn Avenue in a designated Corridor of Opportunity in the City of Charlotte (the "City"); and

WHEREAS, such development will increase vehicular and pedestrian connectivity for residents of surrounding communities and create open space and placemaking opportunities; and

WHEREAS, such development will include physical infrastructure improvements such as streets, sidewalk improvements, lighting and utility connections; and

WHEREAS, significant infrastructure improvements are needed to support the project, and in order to make the project financially viable, the Developer has requested a public/private partnership to fund \$2,214,718 in public improvements which will be reimbursed by the City and Mecklenburg County ("County") by way of a 15-year, 45% tax increment grant ("TIG"); and

WHEREAS, the County approved its participation in the public/private partnership at its April 5, 2022 meeting of the Board of County Commissions; and

WHEREAS, under Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes, as amended, cities and counties are authorized to jointly enter into interlocal cooperation undertakings with other local governments for the joint exercise of any power, function, public enterprise, right, privilege, or immunity of local governments in North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, the City has the authority to construct and improve streets (G.S. 160A-296(a)(3)), the City and County have the authority to enter into infrastructure reimbursement agreements with private developers and property owners (SL-2001-329; G.S. 153A-451) and the City has the authority to finance such infrastructure (G.S. 160A-20); and

WHEREAS, the City will enter into an Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement with the Developer pursuant to which the City will acquire and pay for certain Public Improvements for the project; and

WHEREAS, the County will participate in funding the Public Improvements pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement by making TIG payments to the City.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, that the Council does hereby approve an Interlocal Agreement with Mecklenburg County for a tax increment grant and authorized the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract for the same.

April 11, 2022 Resolution Book 52, Page 668

ADOPTED the 11th day of April , 2022

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 667-668_____.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA ON APRIL 11th, 2022

A motion was n	nade by $__$	Egleston	and seconded b	y <u>Drigo</u>	gs	
for the adoption	n of the follo	wing Resolution, a	and upon being put to	a vote wa	s duly adopted:	
WHEREAS,	allocation stormwater Appropriati Environmen	of the American investments in ons Act of 2021 atal Quality Division,000 as grants for	Assembly appropriat Rescue Plan Act fo Sections 12.13 and (S.L. 2021-180). Ton of Water Infrastru drinking water, wast	r drinking 12.14 of he North acture will	water, wastewa the Current Op Carolina Departi administer appro	ter, and erations ment of ximately
WHEREAS,	system infr which, amo	astructure project	I for and intends to im described as the Lea III create an inventory a, and	id and Cop	per Rule Revision	project,
WHEREAS,	The City of	Charlotte intends t	to request State grant	assistance	for the project.	

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE:

That the City of Charlotte, will arrange financing for all remaining costs of the project, if approved for a State grant award.

That the City of Charlotte will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the project.

That the City of Charlotte, the Director of Charlotte Water, and any successor so titled, or her designees, is hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the City of Charlotte with the State of North Carolina for a grant to aid in the completion of the project described above.

That the Director of Charlotte Water, and any successor so titled, or her designees, is hereby authorized and directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with such application or the project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application.

That the City of Charlotte has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the 11th day of April, 2022 at Charlotte, North Carolina.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 669.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

**Tephanie Control of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS

WHEREAS, the City of Charlotte ("City") owns a certain parcel of real property in Ashe Plantation, Phase II, containing approximately 0.721 acre, identified as "Well Lot #3" in Map Books 22, Page 60, and 23, Page 18, of the Mecklenburg County Registry, having Tax Parcel Number 197-172-52, and being more particularly described on Exhibit A (hereafter, the "Property"); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statue §160A-269 permits the City to sell property by upset bid, after receipt of an offer for the property is made; and

WHEREAS, James W. Adams, III and wife, Emily D. Adams (jointly the "Adams") have made an offer to purchase the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Adams have paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on the offer.

THEREFORE, THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE CITY COUNCIL RESOLVES THAT:

- The City of Charlotte City Council ("City Council") authorizes the sale of the Property described above through the upset bid procedure of the North Carolina General Statute §160A-269.
- 2. The City Clerk shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published. The notice shall describe the Property and the amount of the offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset.
- 3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a qualifying increased bid to the office of the City Clerk within ten (10) days after the notice of sale is published.
- 4. If a qualifying increased bid is received, the City Clerk shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be published, and shall continue to do so until the 10 day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City Council.
- 5. A qualifying increased bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of the first \$1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that offer.

- 6. A qualifying increased bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier's check, certified check, or other immediately available funds. The City will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received. At closing, the City will return the deposit of the final high bidder or credit the amount thereof toward the purchase price.
- 7. The terms of the final sale are that;
 - a. The offer that the City Council intends to accept, subject to the upset bid procedures provided by statute, is \$24,000.00. Any upset bids shall be based upon the total amount proposed to be accepted by the City Council;
 - b. The City must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will consider, unless the Property is withdrawn from sale, within 30 days after the final upset bid period has passed; and
 - c. The buyer must pay with cash, or other good funds, at the time of closing.
- 8. The City reserves the right to withdraw the Property from sale at any time before the final high bid is accepted, and the right to reject at any time all bids.
- 9. If there are no qualifying upset bids received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby accepted. The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute the instruments necessary to convey the property to James W. Adams, III and wife, Emily D. Adams.

Adopted this 11th day of April 2022.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 670-672.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

EXHIBIT A

All that certain parcel of land in Clear Creek Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina and more particularly described as follows:

BEING all of Community Well Site number 3 as shown on the map of ASHE PLANTATION, Phase II, recorded in Map Book 22 at Page 60 in the Mecklenburg County Registry.

Being the same parcel conveyed to the City of Charlotte from Aqua North Carolina, Inc., by Deed dated February 23, 2016, of record in Deed Book 30613, Page 431, described therein as Tract 2.

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-31 WINDSFORD AREA ANNEXATION

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has been received; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of the petition; and

WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition has been made;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina that:

Section I. A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area described herein will be held during a virtual meeting that is accessible via the Government Channel, the City's Facebook page, or the City's YouTube page at 6:30 p.m. on May 9, 2022.

Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

That certain tract or parcel of land situated, lying, and being in the Long Creek Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as follows: **BEGINNING** at the base of an existing #4 rebar marking the southernmost corner of the Brendan & Stacy Roisin property as described in Deed Book 31087, Page 291, said rebar having the following NAD 83 (2011) grid coordinates: Northing: 579,988.72 feet, Easting: 1,437,494.96 feet, said rebar also lying on the northwest property line of the Mecklenburg County property as described in Deed Book 29362, Page 852; thence with the Mecklenburg County property South 35-52-26 West 293.81 feet to an existing 10" stone marking the northern corner of the JDSI, LLC property as described in Deed Book 36507, Page 108; thence with the JDSI, LLC property South 34-24-23 West 106.08 feet to an existing 1.25" axle marking the eastern corner of the Rodney Morgan Parker and Donna Parker Whitesides property as described in Deed Book 23795, Page 74; thence with the Parker & Whitesides property two (2) courses and distances as follows: (1) North 62-00-37 West 101.09 feet to an existing #4 rebar; (2) North 61-57-28 West 471.07 feet to an existing 3/4" iron pipe marking the southeast corner of the Melanie M. Dortschy property as described in Deed Book 17590, Page 969; thence with the Dortschy property two (2) courses and distances as follows: (1) North 01-38-00 East 838.65 feet to the base of an existing #4 rebar; (2) North 01-36-07 East passing an existing 3/4" iron pipe at 442.68 feet a total distance of 463.26 feet to a point in the center of Miranda Road; thence with the center of Miranda Road six (6) courses and distances as follows: (1) North 65-42-02 East 403.43 to a point: (2) North 65-45-52 East 97.23 feet to a point; (3) North 66-13-57 East 100.00 feet to a point; (4) North 66-21-49 East 127.88 feet to a point; (5) North 67-54-23 East 107.96 feet to a point; (6) North 70-15-18 East 10.00 feet to a point marking the northwest corner of the Angela Marie McGee property as described in Deed Book 8994, Page 368; thence with the McGee property South 00-16-10 East passing an existing 1.5" iron pipe at 19.24 feet a total distance of 1073.54 feet to an existing #5 rebar lying on the northwest line of the Brendan & Stacy Roisin property as described in Deed Book

April 11, 2022 Resolution Book 52, Page 674

31087, Page 291; thence with the Roisin property two (2) courses and distances as follows: (1) South 35-48-11 West 142.41 feet to an existing #5 rebar; (2) South 00-35-19 East 397.17 feet to the Point or Place of **BEGINNING**; containing **28.0637** acres of land.

Section 3. Notice of the public hearing shall be published in the *Mecklenburg Times*, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Charlotte, at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the public hearing.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 673-674.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

Stephanie Control Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-31 ENCLAVE AT FAIRHILL POND AREA ANNEXATION

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has been received; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of the petition; and

WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition has been made;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina that:

Section I. A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area described herein will be held during a virtual meeting that is accessible via the Government Channel, the City's Facebook page, or the City's YouTube page at 6:30 p.m. on May 9, 2022.

Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

BEGINNING at an existing rebar on the northwesterly margin of the right-of-way of Browne Rd, being a common corner of the property of Richard Alan Black & Linda Boyles (now or formerly) recorded in Deed Book 3623. Page 864; thence following the rights-of-way of Browne Rd and Hucks Rd twelve (12) calls: (1) with a bearing of S 22°49'49" W and a distance of 186.05' to a set rebar; (2) with a curve to the left having a radius of 1435.00' and an arc length of 194.25', and being chorded by a bearing of S 18°57'09" W and a distance of 194.10' to a set rebar; (3) with a curve to the right having a radius of 218.13' and an arc length of 80.77', and being chorded by a bearing of S 54°08'30" W and a distance of 80.31' to a set rebar; (4) with the existing city limits line with a curve to the left having a radius of 435.00' and an arc length of 104.13', and being chorded by a bearing of S 77°27'13" W and a distance of 103.88' to a set rebar; (5) with the existing city limits line with a bearing of S 70°35'46" W and a distance of 101.78' to a set rebar; (6) with the existing city limits line with a bearing of S 19°24'14" E and a distance of 5.00' to a set rebar; (7) with the existing city limits line with a bearing of \$ 70°35'46" W and a distance of 18.72' to a set rebar; (8) with the existing city limits line with a bearing of S 19°24'14" E and a distance of 13.04' to a point; (9) with the existing city limits line with a bearing of S 70°52'01" W and a distance of 25.30' to a point; (10) with the existing city limits line with a bearing of S 19°59'05" E and a distance of 4.50' to a point; (11) with the existing city limits line with a bearing of S 68°42'57" W and a distance of 52.67' to a point; (12) with the existing city limits line with a bearing of S 71°24'45" W and a distance of 16.42' to a point; thence with the existing city limits line with a bearing of S 19°28'32" E and a distance of 7.49' to a point in Hucks Rd; thence with the existing city limits line with a bearing of \$70°41'30" W and a distance of 221.95' to a point in Hucks Rd; thence leaving the existing city limits line with a bearing of N 32°09'35" W and a distance of 331.89' (passing an existing rebar at 307.80), to an existing bent rebar, being a common corner of Lot 38 as shown on Map Book 54, Page 469; thence following the eastern line of Map Book 54, Page 469 (Lots 29-38 and Common Open Space) with a bearing of N 04°16'37" E and a distance of 739.52' (passing an existing rebar on 91.18', and

existing rebar at 157.86', an existing rebar at 224.04', an existing rebar at 277.73', an existing rebar at 287.80', an existing rebar at 350.06', an existing rebar at 411.23', an existing rebar at 471.30', an existing rebar at 532.36', and an existing rebar at 611.49') to a set rebar on the southwestern margin of the right-of-way of Sweet Grove Ct; thence following the margin thereof with a bearing of S 75°44'43" E and a distance of 150.14' to an existing bent pipe at the terminus of Sweet Grove Ct, being the common corner of the property of Paul Rogus & Cathleen Rogus (now or formerly) recorded in Deed Book 34411, Page 391 and Deed Book 31239, Page 917; thence following the common line thereof with a bearing of S 75°17'44" E and a distance of 379.93' (passing an existing rebar at 233.88') to an existing pipe, being the common corner of the property of Richard Alan Black and Linda Boyles (now or formerly) recorded in Deed Book 3623, Page 864; thence following the common line thereof two (2) calls: (1) with a bearing of S 23°17'06" W and a distance of 199.96' to an existing pipe with nail; (2) with a bearing of S 75°19'59" E and a distance of 404.07' (passing an existing rebar at 177.13') to an existing rebar; being the point of BEGINNING, having an area of 13.003 acres, more or less, as shown on a survey by Carolina Surveyors, Inc.

Section 3. Notice of the public hearing shall be published in the *Mecklenburg Times*, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Charlotte, at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the public hearing.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 675-676.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

Stephanie G. Kelly

RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO ABANDON AND CLOSE A PORTION OF THE ALLEYWAY OFF OF EAST 16TH STREET PARALLEL TO PEGRAM STREET in the City of Charlotte, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina.

Whereas, JBH Development, LLC has filed a petition to close a Portion of the Alleyway off of East 16th Street parallel to Pegram Street in the City of Charlotte; and

Whereas, a Portion of the Alleyway off of East 16th Street parallel to Pegram Street containing 1,049 square feet or 0.024 acres as shown in the map marked "Exhibit A" and are more particularly described by metes and bounds in the document marked "Exhibit B" all of which are available for inspection in the office of the City Clerk, CMGC, Charlotte, North Carolina; and

Whereas, the procedure for closing streets and alleys as outlined in North Carolina General Statutes, Section 160A-299, requires that City Council first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to close the street and calling a public hearing on the question; said statute further requires that the resolution shall be published once a week for two successive weeks prior to the hearing, and a copy thereof be sent by registered or certified mail to all owners of property adjoining the street as shown on the county tax records, and a notice of the closing and public hearing shall be prominently posted in at least two places along said street or alley.

Now, therefore, be it resolved, by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, at its regularly scheduled session of April 11, 2022, that it intends to close a Portion of the Alleyway off of East 16th Street parallel to Pegram Street and that said right-of-way (or portion thereof) is more particularly described on a map. The public will take notice that, pursuant 160A-299 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the City Council of the City of Charlotte has called a public hearing on the closure of a Portion of the Alleyway off of East 16th Street parallel to Pegram Street, to be conducted at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable, on Monday, the 13th day of June 2022 at the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center, 600 East Fourth Street; Charlotte, North Carolina 28202, by such method, including in a virtual manner, necessary in the COVID-19 pandemic. The meeting will be accessible response to https://charlottenc.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. All interested parties are invited to present comments at the public hearing regarding the closure of a Portion of the Alleyway off of East 16th Street parallel to Pegram Street. To speak at the public hearing, please all the City Clerk's office at 704-336-2248 or sign up online at https://charlottenc.gov/CityClerk/Pages/Speak.aspx. Participants who would like to participate virtually must contact the City Clerk's Office by 9:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting. Alternatively, comments of 350 words or less on the subject of the public hearing may be submitted to the City Clerk's Office at cityclerk@charlottenc.gov, between publication of this notice and 24 hours prior to the scheduled time for the beginning of the public hearing. Anyone requiring special accommodations when calling into the meeting and/or if you require information to be provided in an alternative format, please email charlotteada@charlottenc.gov or call 704-336-5271.

The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish a copy of this resolution in the Mecklenburg Times once a week for two successive weeks preceding the date fixed here for such hearing as required by N.C.G.S. 160A-299.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 677-678.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO ABANDON AND CLOSE UNOPENED BEECHWAY CIRCLE AND MARK WAY RIGHT-OF-WAY in the City of Charlotte, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina.

Whereas, Sugar Creek Apartments, LLC has filed a petition to close Unopened Beechway Circle and Mark Way Right-of-Way in the City of Charlotte; and

Whereas, Unopened Beechway Circle and Mark Way Right-of-Way containing 22,391 square feet or 0.514 acres as shown in the map marked "Exhibit A" and are more particularly described by metes and bounds in the document marked "Exhibit B" all of which are available for inspection in the office of the City Clerk, CMGC, Charlotte, North Carolina; and

Whereas, the procedure for closing streets and alleys as outlined in North Carolina General Statutes, Section 160A-299, requires that City Council first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to close the street and calling a public hearing on the question; said statute further requires that the resolution shall be published once a week for two successive weeks prior to the hearing, and a copy thereof be sent by registered or certified mail to all owners of property adjoining the street as shown on the county tax records, and a notice of the closing and public hearing shall be prominently posted in at least two places along said street or alley.

Now, therefore, be it resolved, by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, at its regularly scheduled session of April 11, 2022, that it intends to close Unopened Beechway Circle and Mark Way Right-of-Way and that said right-of-way (or portion thereof) is more particularly described on a map. The public will take notice that, pursuant 160A-299 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the City Council of the City of Charlotte has called a public hearing on the closure of Unopened Beechway Circle and Mark Way Right-of-Way, to be conducted at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable, on Monday, the 13th day of June 2022 at the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center, 600 East Fourth Street; Charlotte, North Carolina 28202, by such method, including in a virtual manner, necessary in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The meeting will be accessible via https://charlottenc.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. All interested parties are invited to present comments at the public hearing regarding the closure of Unopened Beechway Circle and Mark Way Right-of-Way. To speak at the public hearing, please all the 704-336-2248 office https://charlottenc.gov/CityClerk/Pages/Speak.aspx. Participants who would like to participate virtually must contact the City Clerk's Office by 9:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting. Alternatively, comments of 350 words or less on the subject of the public hearing may be submitted to the City Clerk's Office at cityclerk@charlottenc.gov, between publication of this notice and 24 hours prior to the scheduled time for the beginning of the public hearing. Anyone requiring special accommodations when calling into the meeting and/or if you require information to be provided in an alternative format, please email charlotteada@charlottenc.gov or call 704-336-5271.

The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish a copy of this resolution in the Mecklenburg Times once a week for two successive weeks preceding the date fixed here for such hearing as required by N.C.G.S. 160A-299.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 679-680.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO ABANDON AND CLOSE UNOPENED WAYNE AVENUE AND A PORTION OF MAY STREET in the City of Charlotte, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina.

Whereas, Neal Properties, Inc, Lester Moultrie, and Joan Stowe has filed a petition to close Unopened Wayne Avenue and a Portion of May Street in the City of Charlotte; and

Whereas, Unopened Wayne Avenue and a Portion of May Street containing 24,141 square feet or 0.554 acres as shown in the map marked "Exhibit A" and are more particularly described by metes and bounds in the document marked "Exhibit B" all of which are available for inspection in the office of the City Clerk, CMGC, Charlotte, North Carolina; and

Whereas, the procedure for closing streets and alleys as outlined in North Carolina General Statutes, Section 160A-299, requires that City Council first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to close the street and calling a public hearing on the question; said statute further requires that the resolution shall be published once a week for two successive weeks prior to the hearing, and a copy thereof be sent by registered or certified mail to all owners of property adjoining the street as shown on the county tax records, and a notice of the closing and public hearing shall be prominently posted in at least two places along said street or alley.

Now, therefore, be it resolved, by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, at its regularly scheduled session of April 11, 2022, that it intends to close Unopened Wayne Avenue and a Portion of May Street and that said right-of-way (or portion thereof) is more particularly described on a map. The public will take notice that, pursuant 160A-299 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the City Council of the City of Charlotte has called a public hearing on the closure of Unopened Wayne Avenue and a Portion of May Street, to be conducted at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable, on Monday, the 13th day of June 2022 at the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center, 600 East Fourth Street; Charlotte, North Carolina 28202, by such method, including in a virtual manner, necessary in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The meeting will be accessible via https://charlottenc.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. All interested parties are invited to present comments at the public hearing regarding the closure of Unopened Wayne Avenue and a Portion of May Street. To speak at the public hearing, please all the City Clerk's office 704-336-2248 online at sign up https://charlottenc.gov/CityClerk/Pages/Speak.aspx. Participants who would like to participate virtually must contact the City Clerk's Office by 9:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting. Alternatively, comments of 350 words or less on the subject of the public hearing may be submitted to the City Clerk's Office at cityclerk@charlottenc.gov, between publication of this notice and 24 hours prior to the scheduled time for the beginning of the public hearing. Anyone requiring special accommodations when calling into the meeting and/or if you require information to be provided in an alternative format, please email charlotteada@charlottenc.gov or call 704-336-5271.

The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish a copy of this resolution in the Mecklenburg Times once a week for two successive weeks preceding the date fixed here for such hearing as required by N.C.G.S. 160A-299.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 681-682.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Charlotte finds as a fact that it is necessary to acquire certain property as indicated below for the Charlotte Airport Area Waterline Progressive Design-Build (Old Dowd Road 24" WM Connect) Project; and

WHEREAS, the City either in good faith has undertaken to negotiate for the purchase of this property but has been unable to reach an agreement with the owners for the purchase price or, after reasonable diligence, has been unable to negotiate a purchase price;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of The City of Charlotte that condemnation proceedings are hereby authorized to be instituted against the property indicated below, under the authority and procedures of the laws of the State of North Carolina:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Amount necessary for the Charlotte Airport Area Waterline Progressive Design-Build (Old Dowd Road 24" WM Connect) Project estimated to be:

6,888 sq. ft. (0.16 ac.) in Waterline Easement

and any additional property or interest as the City may determine to complete the Project as it relates to **Tax Parcel No. 061-302-22**; said property currently owned by **Graham & Faust, LLC** and or their owners' successors in interest.

ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION:

Such estimated just compensation as may be determined based upon the takings required by the final construction plans.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated just compensation for the property is hereby authorized to be deposited in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, together with the filing of the Complaint and Declaration of Taking.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 683.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Charlotte finds as a fact that it is necessary to acquire certain property as indicated below for the **DERITA BRANCH TRIBUTARY SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS** Project; and

WHEREAS, the City either in good faith has undertaken to negotiate for the purchase of this property but has been unable to reach an agreement with the owners for the purchase price or, after reasonable diligence, has been unable to negotiate a purchase price;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of The City of Charlotte that condemnation proceedings are hereby authorized to be instituted against the property indicated below, under the authority and procedures of the laws of the State of North Carolina:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Amount necessary for the **DERITA BRANCH TRIBUTARY SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS** Project estimated to be:

6,374 sq. ft. (0.15 ac.) in Sanitary Sewer Easement 8,675 sq. ft. (0.20 ac.) in Permanent Access Easement 12,369 sq. ft. (0.28 ac.) in Temporary Construction Easement

and any additional property or interest as the City may determine to complete the Project as it relates to **Tax Parcel No. 087-071-43**; said property currently owned by **F9 Properties, LLC** (P/K/A ANO, LLC) and or their owners' successors in interest.

ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION:

Such estimated just compensation as may be determined based upon the takings required by the final construction plans.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated just compensation for the property is hereby authorized to be deposited in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, together with the filing of the Complaint and Declaration of Taking.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 684.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Charlotte finds as a fact that it is necessary to acquire certain property as indicated below for **DIXIE RIVER ROAD WM EXTENSION**; and

WHEREAS, the City either in good faith has undertaken to negotiate for the purchase of this property but has been unable to reach an agreement with the owners for the purchase price or, after reasonable diligence, has been unable to negotiate a purchase price;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of The City of Charlotte that condemnation proceedings are hereby authorized to be instituted against the property indicated below, under the authority and procedures of the laws of the State of North Carolina:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Amount necessary for the **DIXIE RIVER ROAD WM EXTENSION** and estimated to be:

9,354 sq. ft. (0.215 acre) of Utility Easement 889 sq. ft. (0.02 acre) of Temporary Construction Easement 10,208 sq. ft. (0.234 acre) of Waterline Easement

and any additional property or interest as the City may determine to complete the Project as it relates to Tax Parcel No. 141-152-18 said property currently owned by ALAN BUCH, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, WILLIAM L. MOWRY, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, RAYMOND L. LANCASTER, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, WILLIAM C. DAVIS, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, CHRISTOPHER M. TURNER, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, or their owners' successors in interest.

ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION:

Such estimated just compensation as may be determined based upon the takings required by the final construction plans.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated just compensation for the property is hereby authorized to be deposited in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, together with the filing of the Complaint and Declaration of Taking.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 685.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Charlotte finds as a fact that it is necessary to acquire certain property as indicated below for **DIXIE RIVER ROAD WM EXTENSION**; and

WHEREAS, the City either in good faith has undertaken to negotiate for the purchase of this property but has been unable to reach an agreement with the owners for the purchase price or, after reasonable diligence, has been unable to negotiate a purchase price;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of The City of Charlotte that condemnation proceedings are hereby authorized to be instituted against the property indicated below, under the authority and procedures of the laws of the State of North Carolina:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Amount necessary for the DIXIE RIVER ROAD WM EXTENSION and estimated to be:

11,782 sq. ft. (0.27 acre) of Utility Easement 137 sq. ft. (0.003 acre) of Temporary Construction Easement 2,999 sq. ft. (0.069 acre) of Waterline Easement

and any additional property or interest as the City may determine to complete the Project as it relates to Tax Parcel No. 141-152-17 said property currently owned by ALAN BUCH, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, WILLIAM L. MOWRY, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, RAYMOND L. LANCASTER, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, WILLIAM C. DAVIS, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, CHRISTOPHER M. TURNER, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, or their owners' successors in interest.

ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION:

Such estimated just compensation as may be determined based upon the takings required by the final construction plans.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated just compensation for the property is hereby authorized to be deposited in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, together with the filing of the Complaint and Declaration of Taking.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 686.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

| Charlotte | C

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Charlotte finds as a fact that it is necessary to acquire certain property as indicated below for **DIXIE RIVER ROAD WM EXTENSION**; and

WHEREAS, the City either in good faith has undertaken to negotiate for the purchase of this property but has been unable to reach an agreement with the owners for the purchase price or, after reasonable diligence, has been unable to negotiate a purchase price;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of The City of Charlotte that condemnation proceedings are hereby authorized to be instituted against the property indicated below, under the authority and procedures of the laws of the State of North Carolina:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Amount necessary for the DIXIE RIVER ROAD WM EXTENSION and estimated to be:

541 sq. ft. (0.012 acre) of Utility Easement

and any additional property or interest as the City may determine to complete the Project as it relates to Tax Parcel No. 113-201-04 said property currently owned by ALAN BUCH, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, WILLIAM L. MOWRY, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, RAYMOND L. LANCASTER, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, WILLIAM C. DAVIS, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, CHRISTOPHER M. TURNER, AND SPOUSE IF ANY, or their owners' successors in interest.

ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION:

Such estimated just compensation as may be determined based upon the takings required by the final construction plans.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated just compensation for the property is hereby authorized to be deposited in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, together with the filing of the Complaint and Declaration of Taking.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 687.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

Stephanie & Kelly

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Charlotte finds as a fact that it is necessary to acquire certain property as indicated below for MONROE ROAD STREETSCAPE; and

WHEREAS, the City either in good faith has undertaken to negotiate for the purchase of this property but has been unable to reach an agreement with the owners for the purchase price or, after reasonable diligence, has been unable to negotiate a purchase price;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of The City of Charlotte that condemnation proceedings are hereby authorized to be instituted against the property indicated below, under the authority and procedures of the laws of the State of North Carolina:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Amount necessary for the MONROE ROAD STREETSCAPE and estimated to be:

787 sq. ft. (0.018 acre)) of Sidewalk/Utility Easement

878 sq. ft. (0.02 acre) of Temporary Construction Easement

5 sq. ft. (0.0 acre)) of Utility Easement

and any additional property or interest as the City may determine to complete the Project as it relates to Tax Parcel No. 159-061-22 said property currently owned by **1200 THE PLAZA**, **LLC** or their owners' successors in interest.

ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION:

Such estimated just compensation as may be determined based upon the takings required by the final construction plans.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated just compensation for the property is hereby authorized to be deposited in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, together with the filing of the Complaint and Declaration of Taking.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 688.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

Stephanie Control Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Charlotte finds as a fact that it is necessary to acquire certain property as indicated below for MONROE ROAD STREETSCAPE; and

WHEREAS, the City either in good faith has undertaken to negotiate for the purchase of this property but has been unable to reach an agreement with the owners for the purchase price or, after reasonable diligence, has been unable to negotiate a purchase price;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of The City of Charlotte that condemnation proceedings are hereby authorized to be instituted against the property indicated below, under the authority and procedures of the laws of the State of North Carolina:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Amount necessary for the MONROE ROAD STREETSCAPE and estimated to be:

765 sq. ft. (0.018 acre)) of Sidewalk/Utility Easement 780 sq. ft. (0.018 acre) of Temporary Construction Easement

and any additional property or interest as the City may determine to complete the Project as it relates to Tax Parcel No. 159-061-23 said property currently owned by **1200 THE PLAZA**, **LLC** or their owners' successors in interest.

ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION:

Such estimated just compensation as may be determined based upon the takings required by the final construction plans.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated just compensation for the property is hereby authorized to be deposited in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, together with the filing of the Complaint and Declaration of Taking.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 689.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

Tephanic Of Charlotte States

**Tephanic Of Charlotte State

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Charlotte finds as a fact that it is necessary to acquire certain property as indicated below for MONROE ROAD STREETSCAPE; and

WHEREAS, the City either in good faith has undertaken to negotiate for the purchase of this property but has been unable to reach an agreement with the owners for the purchase price or, after reasonable diligence, has been unable to negotiate a purchase price;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of The City of Charlotte that condemnation proceedings are hereby authorized to be instituted against the property indicated below, under the authority and procedures of the laws of the State of North Carolina:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Amount necessary for the MONROE ROAD STREETSCAPE and estimated to be:

1,248 sq. ft. (0.029 acre)) of Sidewalk/Utility Easement 2,095 sq. ft. (0.048 acre) of Temporary Construction Easement

and any additional property or interest as the City may determine to complete the Project as it relates to Tax Parcel No. 161-071-15 said property currently owned by **CLAYWORKS**, **INC.**, or their owners' successors in interest.

ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION:

Such estimated just compensation as may be determined based upon the takings required by the final construction plans.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated just compensation for the property is hereby authorized to be deposited in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, together with the filing of the Complaint and Declaration of Taking.

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephanie C. Kelly, City Clerk of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, in regular session convened on the 11th day of April 2022, the reference having been made in Minute Book 155 and recorded in full in Resolution Book 52, Page(s) 690.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.

Stephane Control of Charlotte, North Carolina, this 11th day of April 2022.